
County Zoning Agency 

MINUTES 


October 18,2012 4:00 p.m. 

100 West Walworth Street 


Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


Chair Rick Stacey called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

Roll call- Committee members present were Chair Rick Stacey, Vice-Chair Dave 
Weber, Supervisors Rich Brandl, Carl Redenius and Tim Brellenthin, and Citizen 
Members Richard Kuhnke, Sr. and Jim Van Dreser. A quorum was present. 

County Staff present Land Use and Resource Management Department Director 
Michael P. Cotter, Senior Planner Neal Frauenfelder and Watershed Technician Chris 
Rieck. 
Present for a portion of the meeting / hearing were County Administrator David A. Bretl 
and Land Use and Resource Management Department Urban Manager Fay Amerson. 

A "sign-in" sheet listing attendees on October 18, 2012, is kept on file as a matter of 
record. 

Details of the October 18, 2012, meeting / hearing are on a recorded disc which is on file 
and available to the public upon request / video to view on our website: 
www.co.walworth.wi.us 

Rich Brandl motioned to approve the agenda as printed. Seconded by Dave Weber. 
Motion carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

Dave Weber motioned to approve the September 20, 2012, Minutes. Seconded by 
Rich Brandl. Motion carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

Zoning / Sanitation / Land Conservation Enforcement - Michael Cotter 
Web cam Count #0:1:29 0:5:26 

Subdivision Items - Old Business - none 

Subdivision Items - New Business - none 

Old Business - Discussion Items 

Discussion / possible action re: withdrawal of application for rezone, West Rod Cottage 
Industries, John Stoss, applicant - Michael Cotter 

Dave Weber motioned to accept the request for withdrawal of application for 
rezone. Seconded by Richard Kuhnke Sr. Motion carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

1 

http:www.co.walworth.wi.us


Webcam Count #0:5:27 - 0:24:01 

New Business - Discussion Items 

Discussion / possible action re: Steven L. & Darlene F. Pinnow, applicants, amendment 
of conditional use for a meat processing plant to add venison meat, delete the restriction 
to use at least 80% of the applicant's own livestock and to allow a change in hours of 
operation. Tax Parcel CA210000001, Richmond Township. Neal Frauenfelder 

Jim Van Dreser moved to approve. Seconded by Dave Weber. Motion approved 7
favor O-oppose 

Amended October 18, 2012 

A conditional use pennit for a meat processing plant for direct marketing oflambs as 
specified in Chapter 74, Division 4, Walworth County Code of Ordinances, Walworth 
County, Wisconsin, on lands proposed to be zoned A-4 Agricultural Related 
Manufacturing, Warehouse and Marketing District, and described as follows: 

Part ofTax Parcel #CA21 0000001 

Has been APPROVED subject to the related rezone passing County Board and the 
following conditions: 

1. 	 Approved as per plan submitted with all additional conditions. 

2. 	 Storage limited to material and goods directly associated with business. Outside 
storage shall be limited and located as identified on the plan of operations. No 
outside storage areas including displays of goods shall be allowed on site. 

3. 	 The meat processing plant / retail sales shall meet all applicable Federal, State, 
County and local regulations prior to and during operations on site. 

4. 	 Outside lighting to be shielded and directed on site and located as identified on 
the approved plan. 

5. 	 The applicant must obtain all required zoning pennit approvals including a sign 
permit. 

6. 	 No burning or disposal of waste materials shall occur on site. 

7. 	 The applicant must obtain a County Land Disturbance Erosion Control and 
Stormwater Management Pennit from the County Conservation Office. The 
applicant must submit and obtain approval of a landscaping plan from the County 
Conservation Office. 

2 



8. 	 All parking and access to the site shall meet County requirements. All parking 
shall be installed according to County requirements within 60 days of this 
approval. 

9. 	 The project site must be kept neat, clean and mowed. 

10. Any changes to the character, intensity or use of this site not capable ofbeing 
discerned by the Land Management Department as consistent with this approval 
must be brought before the County Zoning Agency for additional conditional use 
reVIew. 

Specific Conditions: 

11. Processing ofmeat on site shall be limited to lamb or goat or venison meat, t!Sffi.g 
at least 80% of the applicant's oVlfllivestock as per the Town. 

12. Retail sales on site shall be limited to the products processed with the primary 
ingredients being lamb or goat as per the Town. 

13. The hours ofoperation of the meat processing plant / retail sales shall be 6:00 
a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Monday through Fridays and 8:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on 
Saturdays with no Sunday hours as per the Town. Sunday. 

14. The meat processing plant shall be inspected by the USDA prior to beginning 
operations and during the course of those operations and meet all required State 
and Federal requirements. 

15. The waste storage tank must obtain DNR inspection and approval prior to being 
used in conjunction with the meat processing facility. If it is determined that the 
DNR shall not conduct an inspection and approval of the animal waste storage 
tank then the manure storage structure must be designed and approved by a 
licensed engineer at the owners expense and meet NRCS Technical standard 313. 
No human waste may be disposed of in the animal waste storage tank without 
approval from the Department of Commerce commercial buildings sanitary 
inspector and Department ofNatural Resources. 

16. The owner must obtain DNR approval prior to land application ofwaste stored in 
the animal waste storage tank. 

Web cam Count #0:24:02 0:30:13 

Discussion/Possible action re: Conserv FS (formerly known as Northern FS, Inc.) 
applicant, amendment of conditional use for expansion of their existing facility including 
a building addition and a new containment facility. Michael Cotter 

Dave Weber moved to approve. Seconded by Richard Kuhnke Sr. Motion 
approved 7-favor O-oppose 

3 



Amended October 18, 2012 

A conditional use to operate an agricultural feed and seed warehouse as specified 
In Section 4.0 of the Zoning Ordinance, Walworth County, Wisconsin, on lands zoned A
4 Agricultural Related Manufacturing, Warehousing and Marketing District and 
described as follows: 

TAX PARCELS: IA196400001 and part of I L 2900001A 

PARCEL 1: A parcel ofland located in the Southeast ~ of Section 29, TIN, RI7E, 
Walworth County, Wisconsin, described as follows: Commencing at the Northwest 
comer ofCertified Survey Map No. 1964; thence South 384.35 feet to the Southwest 
comer of said certified map; thence West 340.00 feet; thence North 384.35 feet; thence 
East 340.00 feet to the place ofbeginning, containing 3.00 acres ofland. 

PARCEL 2: A parcel of land located in the Southeast ~ of Section 29, TI N, RI7E, 
Walworth County, Wisconsin, described as follows: Beginning at the East 1,4 comer of 
said section 29, thence S 0°16'55" E, along the East line ofsaid Southeast ~,384.35 feet; 
thence West 117.90 feet to the Southeast comer of Certified Survey Map No. 1964; 
thence North 384.35 feet to the Northeast comer ofsaid certified survey map; thence East 
116.00 feet to the place ofbeginning, containing 1.03 acres ofland. 

PARCEL 3: Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 1964, located in the Northeast ~ of the 
Southeast ~ of Section 29, Tl N, RI7E, Walworth County, Wisconsin, 

Has been APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

1. 	 The two access points located below the crest of the hill must be eliminated. 

2. 	 Applicant must work with the County Highway Department to establish a new 
access to the site near the crest of the hilL 

3. 	 Any outdoor lighting that may be used shall be shielded so as not to interfere 
with traffic. 

4. 	 Applicant must construct a berm around the liquid fertilizer tanks to contain 
any spills that may occur. 

5. 	 Applicant must submit a better site drawing showing location of storage 
facilities and new access points. 

6. 	 Applicant must meet all Federal, State, County and local requirements. 

Re: Amendment to 1992 conditional use permit for CONSERV FS INC., Tax Key 
#IA196400001 

4 



7. 	 Site layout amended as per plan submitted. 
The proposed amendment involves the expansion of the primary 
commercial structure located on the property. Also included in the 
amendment is a new secondary containment for liquid fertilizer storage. 
The existing structure and the proposed addition are located within the 
"Proposed Building Area" as shown on the original plan. 

8. Subject to Town of Linn approval. 
Webcam Count #0:30:14 - 0:32:16 

DiscussionlPossible action re: Correspondence from Carl Redenius relating to Zoning 
Enforcement. Carl Redenius 
Webcam Count #0:32:17 0:50:04 

At 4:51 p.m. Rich Brandl motioned to recess before the public hearing portion of the 
meeting. Seconded by Jim Van Dreser. Motion carried. 7-favor O-oppose 

Public Hearing: 

Chair Rick Stacey called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

Ordinance Amendments 

Text Amendments to the Multi-Jurisdictional Comprehensive Plan For Walworth 
County: 2035 and Adoption of the Farmland Preservation Plan Into the Comprehensive 
Plan by Reference 

Rich Brandl moved to approve. Seconded by Dave Weber. Motion approved 7
favor O-oppose 
This item will move forward to the November 13, 2012, Walworth County Board for 
possible action. 
Webcam Count #1 :32:43 1:37:02 

Amendments to Multi-Jurisdictional Comprehensive Plan Map for Walworth 
County 2035 

Prairie Land Ventures LLC c/o Steve Regopoulos, Section 34, Sugar Creek Township. 
Amend approximately 36.2 acres of (AP) Prime Agricultural Land Use Category to the 
(AGl) Other Agricultural Rural Residential and Other Open Lands (5 to 34 acres per 
dwelling) Land Use Category. The parcel of concern is located on the SW comer of the 
intersection of Lory and Granville Roads and is identified as Tax Parcel G SC3400003. 

Dave Weber moved to approve. Seconded by Jim Van Dreser. Motion approved 7
favor O-oppose 

5 



This item will move forward to the November 13, 2012, Walworth County Board for 
possible action. 
Webcam Count #l :37:03 - 1 :42:44 

Delavan Lake Enterprises LLC c/o Dana Montana, Section 25, Delavan Township. 
Amend approximately 14.6 acres or all area shown as the (I) Industrial Land Use 
Category to the (C) Commercial Land Use Category on the parcel. The property of 
concern is located on the north side ofHwy 50 approximately 2000 feet northwest of the 
intersection ofHwy 50 and Hwy 67 and is identified as the B-4 and M-1 zoned portions 
of Tax Parcel F D 2500002. 

Richard Kuhnke Sr. moved to approve. Seconded by Rich Brandl. Motion 
approved 7-favor O-oppose 
This item will move forward to the November 13,2012, Walworth County Board for 
possible action. 
Webcam Count #1:42:45 -1:46:18 

Lyons Lions Club c/o Christine M. Zusan, David Held- Applicant, Section 9, Lyons 
Township. Amend approximately 31 acres from the (P) RecreationallPark Land Use 
Category to the (AG1) Other Agricultural Rural Residential and Other Open Lands (5 to 
34 acres per dwelling) Land Use Category. The property of concern is located on the 
south and east sides ofHwy 36 south of the intersection ofHwy 36 and Hospital Road 
and is identified as Tax Parcel N LY 900001B. 

Dave Weber moved to approve. Seconded by Jim Van Dreser. Motion approved 7
favor O-oppose 
This item will move forward to the November 13, 2012, Walworth County Board for 
possible action. 
Webcam Count #1 :46:19 1 :49:31 

Rezones 

Lakewood Farms Inc., (Stephen O'Bryan - Owner), Section 4, East Troy Township. 
Applicant is requesting to rezone approximately 1.95 acres of C-2 Upland Resource 
Conservation District & C-4 Lowland Resource Conservation District to C-2, C-4 and C
1 to correct the wetland and shoreland boundaries to match field conditions. The 
property is located on the north side ofHwy J approximately 300 feet west ofthe 
intersection ofHwy J and Horseshoe Lane and is identified as parts ofTax Parcels P ET 
400001 & 1C. 

Rich Brandl moved to approve. Seconded by Dave Weber. Motion approved 7
favor O-oppose 
This item will move forward to the November 13, 2012, Walworth County Board for 
possible action. 
Webcam Count #1 :49:32 1 :52:55 

6 



Lyons Lions Club, UA (David Held-Applicant), Section 9, Lyons Township. Rezone 
approximately 31 acres of P-1 Recreational Park to A-3 Agricultural Land Holding for 
grain farming. Tax Parcel N LY 90000lB. The rezone will require a consistency review 
with the Walworth County 2035 Land Use Plan. 

Dave Weber moved to approve. Se'conded by Rich Brandl. Motion approved 7
favor O-oppose 
This item will move forward to the November 13,2012, Walworth County Board for 
possible action. 
Web cam Count #1 :52:56 - 1 :56:03 

Conditional Uses 

Aurora Lakeland Medical Center, Section 4, Geneva Township. The applicant is 
requesting conditional use approval for multiple freestanding signs on property zoned P-2 
Institutional Park in accordance with section 74-86 of the Zoning Ordinance. The site is 
located at W3985 County Rd. NN, Elkhorn, WI and is identified as Tax Parcel J G 
400002B. 

Dave Weber moved to approve. Seconded by Rich Brandl. Motion approved 7
favor O-oppose 

Has been APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

General: 

1. 	 Approved as per plan submitted with all additional conditions as stated by this 
conditional use. 

2. 	 All signs approved by this conditional use shall conform to dimensions including 
height, width and lettering size as specified. 

3. 	 All lighting shall be as specified in the on the approved plan. 

4. 	 All landscape screening for the signs shall be located as identified on the 

approved plan. 


5. 	 The owner/applicant must obtain a sign/zoning permit for each sign approved by 
this conditional use. 

6. 	 The sign may not encroach into any required vision triangle at street intersections 
without variance approval from the County Board of Adjustment. 

7. 	 If the Land Management Department determines that changes in either the 

character ofthe use or the intensity of the use are not consistent with this 


7 



approval, then those changes must be brought before the County Zoning Agency 
for approval. 

8. 	 Failure to actively exercise this conditional use within three years of the approval 
date shall result in automatic dismissal without prejudice. The property owner 
may request a time extension for actively exercising the conditional use. A time 
extension for actively exercising the conditional use must be requested in writing 
during the original three year period. Any extension requested during the three 
year active exercise period greater than one year beyond the original three year 
period shall require additional Town and County committee approvals. 

Specific: 

None 
Web cam Count #1:56:04-1:59:06 

Lake Geneva Country Club, Section 15, Linn Township. The applicant is requesting 
conditional use approval for a new maintenance shop/office buildings and cart storage 
building, private golf course, country club and associated uses on property zoned R-l 
Single Family Residence. The site is located at W3398 South Lake Shore Dr., Lake 
Geneva, WI and is identified as Tax Parcels I L 1500004, ILl 000002, and I L 
1000001A. 

Dave Weber moved to approve. Seconded by Jim Van Dreser. Motion approved 7
favor O-oppose 

Has been APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

General: 

1. 	 Approved per plans submitted with all additional conditions. 

2. 	 The owner / applicant shall establish a fertilization and lawn chemical application 
plan that protects the water quality of the lake / stream. The plan must include 
annual soil testing to detennine fertilizer needs. 

3. 	 All cars shall be parked in the marked spaces and special event overflow areas as 
identified on the approved plan ofoperations. Use capacity of the site shall be 
restricted by the cars capable ofbeing parked in the marked spaces and special 
event overflow areas as identified on the plan. Parking must meet with 
requirements of the county zoning ordinance. All parking across from residential 
zoning must be set back 25 feet from the roadway. The off street non-special 
event overflow parking area shall be graded and surfaced so as to be dust free and 
properly drained. All non-special event overflow parking areas shall be clearly 
marked. 

4. 	 All lighting shall be shielded and directed on site. 

8 



5. 	 The project must meet with all applicable Federal, State, County and local 

regulations. 


6. 	 The owner/applicant shall be responsible for obtaining all required County zoning 
and sanitary permit approvals. 

7. 	 The owner / applicant shall obtain a Land Disturbance, Erosion control and 
Stormwater permit from the Walworth County Land Conservation Department. 

8. 	 Any changes to the character, intensity or use ofthis site not capable ofbeing 
discerned by the Land Management Department as consistent with this 
approval must be brought before the Land Management Committee for 
additional conditional use review. 

Specific: 

9. 	 The applicant shall submit detailed elevation and proposed contours for the 
underground cart bunker prior to review and issuance of zoning and erosion 
control permits for this project. The elevation of the adjacent retaining wall 
will also be required. 

10. 	Storage limited to material directly associated with business. Outside storage 
shall be limited and located as identified on the plan of operations. No outside 
storage areas shall be allowed in the required setback areas. 

11. The existing gravel drive within the 75 foot shoreland setback will not be 
allowed to be expanded. All new drives shall be required to be a minimum of 
24 feet wide, at least 75 feet from the lake and 5 feet from all property lines. 

12. 	A copy of all site plans should be submitted to the Town ofLinn for their 
reVIew. 

Webcam Count #1:59:07 - 2:12:23 

Discussion / possible action on Boss Family LLC, (Dan Boss - Applicant) Section 33, 
Richmond Township. Conditional use approval to increase the depth of an existing 
mineral extraction site, recycling of concrete and asphalt and contractor storage in an 
existing gravel pit. Nonmetallic Mining Reclamation Plan Modification. The County 
Land Conservation Division staff will consider all testimony related to the reclamation of 
this mining site. Part ofTax Parcel C R 3300002. 

Jim Van Dreser moved to approve the request, 1) not asking for the change in lines 
one and two, but open to discussion when we get to discussing the motion, 2) ask 
that we change the hours in Condition #8 to four o'clock, 3) ask that we change 
Condition #15 to include recycling concrete, topsoil and asphalt, and 4) that we 
change Condition #27 that the stakes be located outside of the farmland. Seconded 
by Dave Weber. 

9 



Jim Van Dreser made a friendly amendment to add Condition #4 from the original 
conditional use issued in May 1994. Seconded by Dave Weber. 

Jim Van Dreser made a friendly amendment to add designating the location for the 
I-acre for the storage of equipment. Seconded by Dave Weber. 

Motion approved 7-favor O-oppose 

This site had an existing conditional use pennit for a gravel pit with two separate areas of 
excavation (Area A and Area B). The applicant is requesting conditional use approval to 
deepen the excavation area. 

The owner has also requested to be allowed to recycle concrete and asphalt in designated 
areas ofArea A and to be allowed to have temporary contractor storage and timber mats 
stored in a designated area ofArea A in order to bring these existing activities into 
compliance with the zoning requirements. 

The new application is requesting approval to allow the sloped lands of both Area A and 
Area B to be restored to passive recreation and wildlife habitat and the level areas to be 
used for agriculture. A one acre portion of the pit floor is requested to be allowed to 
remain gravel for agricultural equipment storage. 

Have been APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 

General: 

1. 	 Time limit for completion of the project shall be set at one year for Area A Phase 
I, 10 years for Area A Phase II (the pit floor ofArea A Phase II will be restored 
with Phase III) and 20 years for Area A Phase III. Area B shall be completed in 
20 years. 

2. 	 Time limit for completion of the project shall be set at 20 years from date of this 
approval. 

3. 	 Implementation of dust and noise control measures shall occur at all times on site. 

4. 	 The applicant must obtain a Construction Site Erosion and Stonn Water 
Management Pennit from the Walworth County Land Conservation Division. All 
construction site erosion control methods and practices must comply with 
Walworth County Conservation Standards, Technical Standards and Construction 
Standards. 

5. 	 A Nonmetallic Mining Reclamation Pennit and Plan must be approved the 
Walworth County Land Conservation Division. Nonmetallic mining and 
contemporaneous reclamation will be undertaken in phases described in the 

10 



Reclamation Plan. Proof of financial assurance, payable exclusively to Walworth 
County, must be submitted to Walworth County and kept current. The amount of 
the financial assurance shall equal the cost to Walworth County to complete 
reclamation according to the approved reclamation plan. The amount of the 
financial assurance will be reviewed annually by the Walworth County Land 
Conservation Division to assure it equals outstanding reclamation costs. 

6. 	 If for any reason, this Conditional Use is revoked, the applicant may not conduct 
nonmetallic mining on the site, but may conduct construction site erosion control 
and nonmetallic mining reclamation measures ordered by the County Land 
Conservation Division. 

7. 	 The post mining land use for this site shall be agriculture requiring rezoning to the 
A-I zone district. This conditional use shall not be valid without a current post 
mining land use rezone application being on file with Walworth County and the 
Town of Richmond. The property owner shall submit an application, fee and a 
post mining reclamation plan to Walworth County allowing for rezone of the 
property back to the post mining land use / zone district as specified above. The 
post mining land use rezone application shall be required to be kept current by the 
property owner during excavation and reclamation of the site. Should ownership 
of the site transfer prior to receiving Certification of Completion of Reclamation 
from the County (Sec. 26-293 (a.7)), the new property owner must re-sign the 
post mining land use rezone application and pay a new post mining land use 
rezone application fee at the current rezone rate in order to keep this conditional 
use valid. 

8. 	 Hours and days ofoperation shall be set at 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday 
through Friday and 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Saturday. No work shall be 
conducted on Sundays or holidays. 

9. 	 Road access and maintenance agreements shall be filed with the Township and 
County prior to hauling materials off site as part of the restoration plan. 

10. The County will not be liable for any damage to neighboring wells due to the 
operation of the project. 

11. Any additional office / trailer or structures shall obtain approved zoning and 
sanitary permits. 

12. Approval ofthe project shall be subject to all applicable gravel pit policies. 

13. The project shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local regulations 
and requirements. 

14. All material storage locations must be in an approved M-3 zoning district as 
specified. The topsoil berms to be used for restoration shall be allowed outside of 

11 



the M-3 zone district as show on the plan. 

15. No materials shall be brought in from off site other than those materials specified 
in the approved plan ofoperation and restoration plan. The location and 
description of the stockpiled materials shall be shown on the site plan ofoperation 
including recycling concrete, topsoil and asphalt. 

16. All topsQil generated from the site must remain on site for use in restoration as 
indicated in and regulated by the restoration plan. All topsoil will be regraded 
evenly on the disturbed area and may not be exported off site. 

17. All site dewatering shall be conducted so as to prevent sedimentation outside of 
the project area in accordance with the Erosion Control and Stormwater 
Management permit and all technical standards for dewatering. 

18. The applicant shall certify that the project plans and the conditions ofthis 
approval shall be provided and discussed with the property owner prior to 
excavation on site and must provide a copy of the certification signed by the 
owner to the Town and County. 

19. Following restoration, the landowner shall petition to rezone the property back to 
the original zone districts. The owner ofproperty approved for non-metallic 
mining shall be required to submit a signed upfront rezone application and fee for 
rezoning the property back to the pre-existing zone district. Upon completion of 
restoration the County shall hold a public hearing for rezoning of the property 
back to the original zone district. The County shall not release the required 
performance bond or surety until the property ofconcern has been reclaimed and 
rezoned. 

20. Post mining Rezoning --- The post-mining rezoning application must be executed 
within 60 days following successful reclamation and the issuance ofa Certificate 
a/Completion by the Walworth County Land Conservation Division. 

21. The applicant must obtain a sign permit from the County Zoning Office prior to 
construction of any signs on site. No offpremise signs or billboards will be 
allowed to be located in an M-3 district even under a State Hwy permit because 
the M-3 use is temporary and the signs must be consistent with the required 
zoning upon restoration. 

22. No storage of chemicals and petroleum products shall occur on site unless stored 
in a containment facility meeting State requirements. 

23. The applicant must stipulate that adequate liability insurance will be held at all 
times during excavation and restoration to cover any damages resulting from the 
project. The applicant has agreed to provide a copy of the liability insurance 
coverage document for the file. 

12 



24. The applicant will be held solely responsible for maintaining support rights of 
neighboring property owners. Adequate setbacks from the proposed excavation 
to neighboring properties shall be provided to prevent damages resulting from 
potential cave in of the excavation walls. 

25. Groundwater Protection. Mining and reclamation shall be conducted in a manner 
that does not cause a pennanent lowering of the water table that results in adverse 
effects on surface waters, wetlands or a significant reduction in the quantity of 
groundwater reasonably available for future uses ofgroundwater. Nonmetallic 
mining shall be conducted in a manner complying with Wisconsin Groundwater 
Quality standards contained in Chapter NR 140 of the Wisconsin Administrative 
Code. 

26. The County will not be responsible for loss ofagricultural productivity of the 
property as a result of this project. 

27. The property owner shall stake the M-3 boundary around the pit at an interval of 
every 200 feet, to be located outside of farmland, to assure that future excavation 
will not occur outside of the designated mineral extraction zone district. Stakes 
must be made ofa material that will not deteriorate under nonnal weather 
conditions. These stakes shall be maintained by the property owner and remain in 
place during the life of the project. The stakes shall be inspected by the County 
Land Use and Resource Management Department or designee before operations 
commence under this approval. 

28. The owner / operator shall be responsible for infonning the County of any 
changes to the use of the site and the operations plan prior to implementation of 
any changes. 

29. If the Land Management Department detennines that changes in either the 
character of the use or the intensity of the use are not consistent with this 
approval, then those changes must be brought before the County Zoning Agency 
for approval. 

Specific: 

30. The property owner shall reclaim all areas excavated outside ofthe staked M-3 
zone district boundaries to the original pre-excavation grades within 60 days of 
this approval. This reclamation shall be reviewed and approved by the Walworth 
County Land Conservation Division prior to commencing. 

31. The CZA detennined that 1 acre ofArea A can be used for the storage of fann 
machinery and equipment. The applicant must revise the site plan and 
reclamation plan to show the location of the 1 acre proposed for the storage of 
fann machinery and equipment. 

13 



32. No portion of the area which is zoned M-3 shall be used as a licensed sanitary 
landfill during the time it is zoned M-3. This temporary restrictive covenant will 
be recorded in the office of the Register ofDeeds. 

Web cam Count #2:12:24 - 3:20:34 

Adjournment 

Dave Weber motioned to adjourn. Seconded by Jim Van Dreser. Motion carried. 
7-favor O-oppose 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:22 p.m. 

Submitted by Wendy Boettcher, Recording Secretary. 

Minutes are not final until approved by the committee at its next meeting. 


14 



DRAFT 


Wahvorth County Board Finance Committee 

MEETING MINUTES 


Thursday, October 18, 2012 


Walworth County Government Center 

County Board Room 114 


100 West WI 


The meeting was called to order by Chair Russell at 9:37a.m. 

Roll call Finance Committee members present included Supervisors Jerry Grant, Daniel Kil
kenny, Nancy Russell, Joseph Schaefer, and Rick Stacey. A quorum was declared. 

Others in attendance included: 
• 	 County Staff: David Bretl-County Administration/Corporation Counsel; Nicki Andersen, 

Jessica Lanser-Finance; Linda Seemeyer-Health & Human Services; John Orr
Information Technology; Michael Cotter-Land Use & Resource Management; Kevin 
Brunner-Public Works; Kurt Picknell-Sheriff's Office; Kathy Du Bois, Valerie Etzel
Treasurer's Office; Josh Clements-UW -Extension. 

Agenda withdrawals - There were no agenda withdrawals. Motion by Supervisors Stacey 
and Schaefer to approve the agenda; carried 5-0. 

Approval of minutes of last meeting(s) September 20,2012 - Supervisors Stacey and 
Grant moved approval of the minutes; carried 5-0. 

Public comment period - There were no comments from members of the public. 

Untmished business 

Discussion and possible action regarding Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) 
Fund investment strategy - If we have good bond funds, maybe we should stick with 
them, but PFM is invested in pooled bond funds so it is not a matter ofbuying a single 
bond and holding it. Kilkenny found it hard to believe that we couldn't get some product 
to smooth out variations and that PFM advised such a product was very expensive. He is 
not comfortable being a speculator. Russell said she is concerned about remaining in the 
bond market. Bretl recommended making a move out ofbonds. We don't see those going 
in the direction we want. However, he is not necessarily sold on equity either and is not 
sure where we would put the money. Determining the end game is now in the Board's 
hands. Some places that had huge, unfunded OPEB liabilities ended it for $2 million and 
said that's what they were committing to. Employees would be paid a fraction ofwhat 
they were promised. Bred doesn't think that's a good way to treat employees. That's one 
extreme. The other extreme is what we did, i.e., negotiated benefits. Not everyone knows 
that what active employees get as retirees will change over time. If you retire today, that's 
not the exact insurance you get in perpetuity. It is what is in effect for active employees. 
Bretl said the only reason he put that out there is to take a step back from the investment 
decision and ask where we are heading with regard to the "big picture." 

Page 1 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes October 18, 2012 

Kilkenny said equities can't necessarily provide a guarantee. If the economy becomes 
more stable, perhaps we should invest in blue chips or utilities or something with a mod
est return. What are our options for taking our gains and keeping the fund in cash while 
the committee decides? These are not necessarily mutually exclusive strategies, accord
ing to BretL If the consensus is that bonds have hit their high water mark, then we can 
pull those funds into cash and take some time to decide what to do. We can move the 
money into equity later, if we choose. This doesn't have to be an all-or-nothing decision. 
Russell asked ifwe could put the bond funds into cash and hold it for awhile. The 30% 
in equities could be left as is. Andersen said these are all options. 

Lanser noted that there is an assumption that our OPEB fund will earn at least 4.15%. If 
we change our plan dramatically and are not earning interest, that liability will go up and 
our contribution will have to increase. Russell said we don't have to hold the funds for
ever, just temporarily until we see how things look, particularly after the election. She 
thinks that will make a big difference. Andersen said the committee can choose whatever 
strategy they are comfortable with. Andersen asked if the goal is to reduce the 70% 
bonds to a certain number or to O. How far are we looking to move the dial? Russell's 
opinion is that we should reduce our bond investments to O. Bretl said when you put 
money in, it is typically recommended to do so over a period oftime. Grant asked how 
urgent it is to get this done. Andersen replied that our advisors indicated the market is 
fairly slow moving at the moment. There is no big rush. However, we don't know 
whether the bond market may significantly change. She added that a pooled bond fund 
theoretically reduces the overall risk as opposed to individual bonds. 

Russell asked each committee member if they wanted to hold this item. Stacey agreed. 
Kilkenny agreed. He wants to know more about the fund - what is the value today, what 
is the income we are receiving today. Grant and Schaefer were both waiting for a month 
or two. Russell disagreed but will go along with the consensus. We will hold this item 
until after the first ofthe year so staff can provide additional information. Andersen re
quested clarification. Kilkenny wants to know how much we put in; how much income 
we get today; and if we were to take what the fund is worth today, what would be the 
value to whomever we sold it. Russell suggested a graph showing when the bond fund 
was at its high point and what it has done on a month-to-month basis, although that will 
be skewed by contributions we have added to the fund. It would be helpful to have the 
information by the December meeting but we will take this up again in January. Super
visors Schaefer and Stacey moved to direct staff to develop the requested infor
mation and hold this item for decision in January 2013. The motion carried 5-0. 

Update on action related to special assessments and specifically regarding concerns 
of Alex Tourlakes related to his purchase of a tax foreclosed property - Du bois re
ported that Tourlakes has withdrawn his request for open records going back to 1999. He 
will be getting a refund from the sanitary district for the special assessment scheduled to 
be paid in installments. He has also agreed to pay the delinquent water charges he had 
been contesting so this is now a closed issue. Russell asked if there is any new infor-

Page 2 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes October 18, 2012 

mation regarding specials and how they are being handled. Du Bois said counties handle 
passing charges to the purchaser in different ways. Going forward, we are changing our 
policy. When the county takes title to a foreclosed property, special assessments sched
uled to be paid in installments will be removed from the tax roll. Her office will work 
with the sanitary districts and municipalities to ensure they have updated contacts for the 
parcels. Bretl thanked Du Bois for the time she put into this issue. She provided us with 
a good procedure. 

Correspondence from Supervisor Rick Stacey in regard to property foreclosures 
Stacey said that revenue from zoning permits has probably decreased like never before. 
This is a two-fold issue. He read an article that said many people in America are $400 
away from enclosure. If someone has to put in a septic system, for example, we could 
help them. He recommends offsetting fee reductions from the contingency fund so we 
don't take away money from the Land Use & Resource Management (LURM) depart
ment. People may walk away from a foreclosed property because they don't realize it's 
not properly zoned. It's in our interest to get these back onto the tax roll. Schaefer was 
concerned about properties being bought at a low price and being "flipped." If they are 
buying a foreclosure for that purpose, they can afford to pay the fees, but he is not sure 
how we could control that. Grant said this is a good, heartfelt gesture to help people, but 
where does the gesture stop? That's for us to determine, according to Stacey. He asked 
Cotter how much LURM's revenues have decreased. Cotter said when he started in 
2003, he thinks revenue was around $1 million. This year, it is down to about $418,000. 
Russell was concerned about how we could decide who gets relief from fees and who 
doesn't. This could expand to many other areas. The bottom line is that these are fees 
charged for specific actions the county takes. We have to spend money for staff to exe
cute these actions. She doesn't feel it is right for the entire tax base to pick up the tab for 
something that only benefits a few people. Without our fees, we would have to either cut 
services dramatically or increase property taxes. Stacey agreed but reiterated that the de
partment's loss in fees would be offset by the contingency fund. Kilkenny agreed with 
Russell's concerns but thinks the proposal would just affect the few people who purchase 
foreclosures. Also, taking from the contingency fund is still taking from the taxpayers. 
Bretl commented that Stacey originally proposed waiving fees related to foreclosures but 
now we are looking at this issue more broadly. He would maybe discourage the foreclo
sure angle just from the administrative perspective. Second, we should consider whether 
our fees are reasonable. Departments review the consolidated fee schedule every year. 
We can't make money on them but we do have to offset our costs. Rather than focusing 
on foreclosures, he suggested that the county could lower fees for a period of time to 1) 
give people a break because the economy is poor or 2) do it as a stimulus program. 
\Vould it work? Is it good economic policy? Would it promote construction and so 
forth? Those are all subject to debate. He agrees with Stacey that we should hold the de
partment harmless if we decide to lower fees and offset loss of revenue through the coun
ty's contingency fund. 

Schaefer asked Cotter the total fees if someone bought 5 acres to build a home and out
buildings. Cotter estimated it could be around $575 depending on whether rezoning was 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes October 18, 2012 

necessary. Ifthere is rezoning, it could be less than $1,000. Schaefer suggested dis
counting fees 20% on $1,000. That would be easier than lowering fees. If we want to 
implement a reduced fee for a period of time, Bretl suggested looking at a specific class 
of fees. Don't shift the cost to other taxpayers but define the activities you want to en
courage, such as economic development or giving single family homeowners a break. 
Kilkenny thought that might be difficult to administer. Schaefer explained that his idea 
was to reduce all fees by 20% for one year. Stacey added that his raw idea was to reduce 
zoning and conditional use fees but he likes Schaefer's proposal. Russell asked what 
20% ofall of the LURM fees would be. Cotter did not know. Andersen noted that the 
earlier $1 million reference to LURM revenue included grants, land conservation, etc. 
$418,000 is the zoning and sanitation fee revenue for the department. Cotter mentioned 
that Shodeen's proposed development is now on hold. Over a 30-year period, their fees 
would be about $250,000 on the most recent development, not the original units. Reduc
ing those fees could be a definite incentive for developers. Earlier, someone commented 
that fees might be too high. LURM's fees are right in line with the region and have not 
been raised in a few years. At one time, Cotter advocated for a total fee recovery system 
where a developer pays for everything from the minute they sit down to when they walk 
out the door. Most cities do that, and it would be another option as well. As Bretl said 
earlier, fees are not a moneymaker for us. They cover all of the work our staff do. 

Schaefer asked if a 20% reduction in all fees would be difficult to implement. Bretl felt 
that would be the easy way to do it because you can apply a formula across the board. 
There are other considerations. For example, communication towers are included. Do you 
want to lower those, too? The fee schedule is very encompassing. Are there certain behav
iors you want to target? Russell commented that there could be resistance when the time 
comes to revert to our original fee schedule. What this really amounts to is that the general 
public is paying for a specific service for which only they benefit. We could get into a real 
quagmire. Kilkenny doesn't necessarily think fees drive what people will do. Also, maybe 
the public would think we don't need to be regulating some of these things so closely. 
Bretl said we don't need to rush into a decision, particularly if the loss of revenue would be 
supplemented from the contingency fund but we do have to adopt a fee schedule when we 
pass the budget in November. Supervisors Stacey and Grant moved to table this item 
to 2013; carried 5-0. 

New business 

Establishing Official County Bond Amounts for Specified Walworth County Constitutional 
Officers for 2013-2016 Historically, the county has had a number ofdifferent employee 
bonds, according to Andersen. The blanket employee dishonesty bond covered general employ
ees. We also carry a public officials bond and a commercial crime policy, ifmoney stolen by 
outside party. At a recent conference, finance stafflearned that the recommendation in the public 
is that municipalities should carry $1 million loss coverage. We currently have a $100,000 poli
cy for our blanket bond. The individual elected officials have a lesser amount. Andersen re
ferred the committee to the comparison chart in the agenda packet. The difference in premium 
will be less than $1,000 for a significant increase in our overall coverage. We also hope to re
duce the administrative work associated with having three different bonds and will consolidate 

Page 4 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes October 18, 2012 

coverage with one company. Bred noted that bonding is an old law that probably goes back to 
statehood. Elected officials needed to file their oath of office and bond with the clerk. Years 
ago, they did that themselves, and the language has persisted in the Statutes. There is also lan
guage stipulating that the district attorney must approve the bonds. Bretl thought that was from 
when the DA's were also county attorneys. This is a more modern and comprehensive approach. 
Supervisor Stacey moved to approve the ordinance providing for $1 million bond coverage. 
Supervisor Grant seconded. The motion carried 5-0. 

Andersen excused herself but said Lanser will answer questions on the remaining agenda items. 

Consent items Stacey pulled agenda item 8B2, sale of tax foreclosure property(s) for separate 
discussion. Russell pulled items 8C2, the UW-Extension out-of-state travel report; SEI, tax 
software/parcel renumbering conversion update; 8E2, quarterly property loss report; and 8E4, 
update on tax incremental financing district(s). Supervisors Stacey and Schaefer moved to 
approve the remainder of the consent items; carried 5-0. 

Budget amendments 

Health & Human Services 
• HSO 16 Reflect increased number of children and juvenile referrals 
Sheriffs Office 
• 	 SH006 Reflect award of Speedwave Grant 

Bids/contracts 

• 	 Proposal award for professional auditing services for the finance department 
By earlier motion, the committee awarded to Baker, Tilly, Virchow, Krause, LLP. 

• 	 Award sale(s) oftax foreclosure property - Brunner stated that 44 properties 
were listed for sale, one ofwhich was repurchased by the owner. We received 
bids on 33 of the remaining parcels. Only one bid, on a Town of Delavan proper
ty, exceeded the appraised value. 

• 	 Parcel FLAD 00179, Town ofDelavan - Kathryn 1. & Dean A. Forde sub
mitted the qualified highest price bid of$5,967.98. The property was ap
praised at $3,520. Supervisors Stacey and Grant moved to award the bid 
to Kathryn L. & Dean A. Forde; carried 5-0. 

• 	 Parcel STFV 00176, Village of Fontana - There were no qualified bids re
ceived on this property, according to Brunner. Du Bois stated that a question 
regarding this parcel is also addressed later in the agenda. 

Supervisors Kilkenny and Grant moved to reject all bids other than the one al
ready accepted; carried 5-0. Grant was contacted by an attorney regarding a fore
closed property in the City ofWhitewater. He asked the deadline for an owner to pay 
back taxes and regain ownership. Du Bois explained that they have until 5 p.m. on 

Page 5 of 11 

http:of$5,967.98


Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes October 18, 2012 

the day before the award ofthe bid. The next time bids will be awarded will be at the 
November 20,2012 Finance Committee meeting so payment would need to be re
ceived by 5 p.m. on the prior day. 

Out-of-state travel 

Public Works 
• 	 Kevin Brunner & John Miller, Growing Sustainable Communities Conference, 

Dubuque, IA 

UW-Extension 

• 	 Josh Clements, Growing Sustainable Communities Conference, Dubuque, IA 

Russell asked why Clements' travel was for a day longer than Brunner and Miller, 
who attended the same conference. Clements explained that a tri-state sustainable 
cities regional collaboration meeting was scheduled for the following day. UW
Extension team up with staff from Minnesota and Iowa to work on sustainable 
municipal development and building management. 

Notification of emergency procurement 

• Replacement of the frequency drive on the air handler for Lakeland School 

Reports 

• 	 Tax software/parcel renumbering conversion progress report - The project has two 
phases, according to Orr. First is the renumbering to bring our tax numbering system 
current and make it more in line with what the State is recommending. The second 
phase is the new tax software that was approved some months ago. His staff investigated 
renumbering to get some direction on how to proceed. This a massive project that will 
affect both constituents and businesses that utilize our tax numbering system. We have 
three issues. 1) There are multitudes of applications on the old legacy system, the 
AS/400, which will not accept the new, long number. We would have to rewrite every 
application to accept the new number before conversion. It could take 9 months to a year 
of programming hours just to make that change. 2) IT staff contacted another county 
that went through a renumbering project. The biggest issue they faced is that businesses 
who use tax key numbers had to change their software to accept the new numbers. We 
would have to notify them that our system is being updated and provide enough lead time 
for them to change their software. 3) One ofhis staff asked the Wisconsin Department 
ofRevenue ifthey will be enforcing the format recommended by the Wisconsin Land In
formation Association. He was told they would not. 

IT staff then talked to our software vendor. Another field will be created for the old tax 
key number so we will use both for two years. Both numbers will be searchable. This al
lows us time to communicate with the entities that purchase and utilize our data so they 
can change their systems to accept the new parcel number. Additionally, the Land Use 
and Resource Management department has reams ofdocuments with the old parcel num
ber and programs on the AS/400 as well. They need time to change their records. The 

Page 6 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes October 18, 2012 

2013 budget includes replacement ofLURM's AS/400 software. Orr added that any of 
the county's search mechanisms, whether within the GIS system or any other system, will 
have to be changed to accept both numbering systems. We should also consider putting 
both numbers on the tax bills so taxpayers can start getting used to it. Kilkenny asked if a 
conversion list could always be made available to someone who wanted to look up a tax 
key number. Orr said that could be done. At some point, as new parcels are created, we 
will just assign the new number. The new format for these numbers is not the reason we 
are converting. We need updated software, and that doesn't work with our old numbers. 
Also, we have mathematically run out ofpennutations. We might as well utilize a format 
the State may move to at some point in the future. Also, our current system is very quirky. 
If you don't enter the requisite number of spaces, you don't get a search result. IT gets 
several calls a week from people who don't understand how to put in tax key numbers. 
Russell commented that a decision whether to continue making municipalities whole on 
special assessments can't be made until after we convert to the new system. Kilkenny lik
ened this transition to Y2K. Orr noted that, for the most part, Y2K was a non-event and 
that was because of preparation. That's our plan for this conversion. 

• 	 Quarterly property loss report - 3rd Quarter 2012 - Russell commented that claims are 
less this year than in the other years reported. 

• 	 Delinquent real estate tax report - 3rd Quarter 2012 

• 	 Update on tax incremental financing (TIF) district( s) - Lanser feels that having a stand
ing committee will allow joint review boards the opportunity to hear how TIDs are going 
every year. 

New business 

Resolution **-11112 Accepting the Donation of Equipment Totaling $28,065 from the Ge
neva National Foundation for Use at Lakeland School 

Resolution **-11/12 Accepting the Donation of Four (4) Apple iPads from Logan Zurn for 
Use at Lakeland School 

Agenda items 9A and 9B, regarding donations to Lakeland School were considered joint
ly. Bretl said both were approved by the Children with Disabilities Education Board. 
Supervisor Kilkem:~y moved to approve both Lakeland School donation resolutions. 
Supervisor Grant seconded the motion which carried 5-0. 

Discussion and possible action establishing policy regarding unbuildable parcels - When 
Du Bois and Cotter begin the foreclosure process each year, they review the parcels to determine 
ifthere are any for which it would not in the best interests of the county to take title. Their con
cern, for example, is that if a parcel is very swampy, what would be the county's liability if we 
take title and an accident occurs on the land? If no one buys the parcel, it would just sit in the 
county's name. Cotter explained that a number of years ago, when subdivisions were developed, 
their stormwater retention basin would often be put on an outlot. The developer would tell the 

Page 7 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes October 18, 2012 

homeowners to create a subdivision association and take care of it themselves. Those associa
tions invariably go away and the outlot is left. That has since been corrected through zoning, but 
there are some areas where you buy a house and have ownership in an outlot. Some of those out
lots just went up for tax foreclosure. It is obvious we don't want to take title on parcels with de
tention basins or structures affiliated with a subdivision. Cotter thinks there are 11 parcels eligi
ble for foreclosure that he has recommended we not take title. We could try to sell lots like that, 
but they may not go back onto the tax rolls. Russell asked if the State's law regarding recrea
tional immunity would protect us if someone were to trespass on such a property. Cotter replied 
that we can try. It's all speculative. The Statute definitely applies to parks such as Natureland. 
Stacey asked if any foreclosed parcels currently have retention ponds. Cotter said no. Bretl 
asked how difficult it would be to periodically bring a list of these properties to the committee. 
Foremost, we would have to consider the liability and expense of maintaining a retention pond 
and having to clean it. Also, someone could purchase an unbuildable parcel and stop paying tax
es after a couple of years, so it would come back to us. Russell asked how unbuildable parcels 
would be identified if we decide not to take title. Cotter explained that zoning staff review all 
properties that come to foreclosure. They don't go out and do an on-site inspection but you can 
partly tell by how they are zoned. Grant asked what would happen ifwe don't take title to un
buildable parcels. Cotter replied that ifwe don't take title, the property remains the responsibil
ity of the prior owner. Bretl added that we do not have a duty to foreclose. Grant said we need a 
formal policy. He asked Cotter to draft a policy for review next month. Russell liked the idea of 
reviewing the list annually. 

By Statute, we can cancel taxes at 11 years and write off the oldest year of the taxes, according 
to Du Bois. If the committee recommends that the county not take title, perhaps we could con
tact the assessor and ask if the assessed value could be lowered. Kilkenny asked ifwe can do 
that as an interested party, even if we don't take title. Bretl was not sure if we have the ability to 
argue assessments in that situation. Russell mentioned a railroad property years ago, an ease
ment that shouldn't have been taxed. We didn't have an interest in the property but asked the 
assessor to change the assessed value. She suggested we do the same with unbuildable parcels. 
Russell thanked Du Bois and Cotter for bringing this issue to the committee's attention. 

Discussion and possible action establishing policy regarding foreclosed parcels with rental 
units Du Bois said there are two houses on this lot, one of which is a rental unit. The tenant, 
who has been paying rent to the ex-wife of the former owner, contacted her office. This is the 
first time we have encountered this situation with a foreclosed parcel. Du Bois thinks we should 
set a policy. Normally, Cotter sends a letter advising tenants that foreclosed property is now 
owned by the county and suggesting they remove their belongings. Cotter added that Finance 
committee guidance a few years ago was to let the new owners deal with eviction, if they choose. 
However, the number of properties with tenants has increased. Last year, he sent 5-6 letters to 
either homesteaders or parcels we knew, or guessed, that people were living on. This year he 
sent 20. At last month's meeting, the committee decided to list foreclosures at the appraised val
ue for two months and then advertise online. That is a fine idea but it created an amount of time 
in which a person would be a tenant and either 1) not paying rent or 2) paying rent to a former 
owner, which would be problematic. We could foreclose on a property where the previous own
er made the tenant pay rent a year in advance. Tenants need to know where to send their rent 

Page 8 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes October 18, 2012 

checks. The flip side is how aggressive should we be with regard to evictions? The letter advis
ing a tenant that the property they are renting has been foreclosed is delivered by the sheriff's 
office. That is not the formal eviction process. Staff need guidance if we want to do formal 
evictions. Stacey thought there was a new Statute on foreclosures with regard to notifYing ten
ants. Cotter said he would look into it. In addition to sending a letter to the former owner, a 
deputy goes to the site and delivers a second letter to the tenant so they are at least put on notice. 
Bretl suggested that Cotter come back to the committee in November with a draft ordinance re
garding the previous agenda item and this one. He thinks we should act aggressively to get folks 
out. Having a tenant when the county takes title can give rise to a lot ofproblems. The issue of 
rent paid in advance is also a good policy question. Supervisor Grant moved to direct staff to 
prepare a policy regarding unbuildable parcels and those on which there may be a tenant, 
including the consensus of the committee on both items, and specifically directing that the 
county not be a landlord. Motion carried 5-0. 

Resolution **-11112 Authorizing Write Off of Balance of2008 Taxes and Waive Interest 
and Penalties on Parcel GA166600001 Du Bois explained that there is litigation between the 
property owner and the State due to the Department ofNatural Resources creating a wetland sur
rounding the sides of the property. The house became unlivable and the homeowner moved out. 
The court case was filed in 2009 and settled in October, 2011 but there was separate litigation 
regarding the settlement process. It is her understanding that the property owner is responsible 
for taxes from January 1, 2008 to June 22,2008, with June 23,2008 being the date of the deter
mination for the State to take the property. The 2009,2010 and 2011 taxes have been paid in full 
by the Town of Sugar Creek. The Town submitted a request to the State to recover through the 
rescinded/refunded tax process. The 2008 taxes could not be included because they are based on 
the assessment as of January 1, and the State does not allow rescinded/refunded taxes for split 
years. The State is anxious to have the property deeded to them but that cannot be done until the 
outstanding 2008 taxes are resolved. Supervisors Stacey and Kilkenny moved to approve the 
resolution; carried 5-0. 

Ordinance **-11/12 Amending Division 4, Sections 30-134, 30-144 and 30-145 ofthe Wal
worth County Code of Ordinances Relating to Public Service Organizations - This ordi
nance cleans up definitions ofpublic service organizations, according to Lanser. It also adds 
language to allow for special one-time donations that may come up. Supervisor Stacey moved 
to approve. The motion was seconded by Supervisor Grant. 

Supervisor Schaefer was excused at 11 :51 a.m. 

The motion carried 4-0. 

Resolution **-11/12 Authorizing a $30,000 Donation to the Wisconsin Dental Association 
for their 2013 Mission of Mercy - Supervisors Grant and Stacey moved approval. Bretl 
commented that the resolution was approved by the Health & Human Services Board yesterday. 
The motion carried 4-0. 

Page 9 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes October 18, 2012 

Ordinance **-11112 Amending Section 30-262(g) ofthe Walworth County Code of Ordi
nances Relating to Surplus Property - Supervisors Kilkenny and Grant moved to approve 
the ordinance. Russell asked if "county employee or official" includes County Board Supervi
sors. She would like the language to state that no surplus property or tax foreclosed property 
may be acquired. Bretl confinned that the Board is included. He was not certain if the Statutes 
allow us to ban purchase of foreclosed properties. Russell commented that the Finance Commit
tee decides whether or not to accept bids. Kilkenny feels a committee member who has submit
ted a bid should recuse himselflherself from the award process. It would be similar to someone 
who sits on the zoning board making a zoning request. Bretl said staff can research this issue. 

Supervisor Schaefer returned at noon. 

After further discussion, Russell asked that the committee vote on the motion as it stands. The 
motion carried 4-1 with Supervisor Russell voting no. 

Supervisor Stacey was excused at 12:01 p.m. 

Ordinance **-11112 Amending Section 62-103 of the Walworth County Code of Ordinances 
Relating to Tax Incremental Financing Districts This ordinance articulates what the county 
would like to see with regard to TIF joint review boards, according to Bretl. Supervisor Grant 
moved to approve the ordinance. Supervisor Schaefer seconded the motion. Kilkenny stat
ed that there are clarifications he would like included in the ordinance and asked that it be held. 
Supervisors Grant and Schaefer withdrew their motion to approve. Supervisor Kilkenny 
moved to place the ordinance on hold until the November 21, 2012 meeting. Supervisor 
Schaefer seconded; motion carried 4-0. 

Ordinance **-11112 Amending Section 30-286 of the Walworth County Code of Ordinances 
Relative to Fees -Bretl reiterated that it would be cleaner to address potential fee changes in 
2013 because we need to adopt a fee schedule as part of the budget process. Supervisors Kil
kenny and Grant moved to approve the ordinance; motion carried 4-0. 

Resolution **-11112 Adopting the 2013 Appropriation of the Walworth County Budget and 
CIP Plan - Supervisors Grant and Kilkenny moved approval of the resolution; carried 4-0. 

Resolution **-11/12 Establishing the County Tax Levy to Support the 2013 Budget Appro
priation Supervisor Grant moved to approve the resolution. Supervisor Kilkenny se
conded the motion which carried 4-0. 

Correspondence - No correspondence was presented. 

Confirmation of next Finance Committee meeting Finance Committee meetings were con-
finned for: 

• 	 Wednesday, November 21,2012 at 9:30 a.m., County Board Room 114 at the Govern
ment Center (Meeting rescheduled due to holiday) 

Page 10 of 11 



Walworth County Board 
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes October 18, 2012 

• 	 Thursday, December 20,2012 at 9:30 a.m., County Board Room 114 at the Government 
Center 

Russell noted that the public budget hearing is scheduled for Tuesday, October 30,2012 at 6:00 p.m. 

Adjournment of Finance Committee 

Upon motion and second by Supervisors Schaefer and Grant, Chair Russell ad~ 
journed the meeting at approximately 12:07 p.m.; carried 4-0. 

Submitted by Kate Willett, recording secretary. Minutes are not final until approved by the Fi
nance Committee at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 

NOTE: Items distributed at the Finance Committee meeting may be reviewed in the County 
Clerk's Office. 

Page 11 of 11 



DRAFT Walworth County Board of Supervisors 
Public Works Committee 

MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 15, 2012 

Walworth County Government Center, County Board Room 114 
100 West Walworth Street, Elkhorn, Wisconsin 

Chair Russell called the meeting to order at 3:37 p.m. 

Roll call was conducted, and all members were present: Chair Nancy Russell; Vice Chair Carl 
Redenius; Supervisors Ken Monroe, Joe Schafer and Rick Stacey 

Others present: 
County Board Supervisor Tim Schiefelbein 
County Staff: Public Works Director of Central Services Kevin Brunner, Operations Director 
Larry Price and Business OfficelPurchasing Manager Peggy Watson; County Administrator 
David Bretl; Deputy County Administrator-Finance Nicki Andersen; Sheriff David Graves; 
Undersheriff Kurt Picknell; Jail Administrator John Delaney; Lt. Jamie Green 
Members of the Public: Wisconsin Department ofTransportation-Southeast Region staff: 
Bunmi Olapo, Project Development Chief; Adrian Lopez, Maiantenance Supervisor; Brian 
Bliesner, Superintendent of Operations; Brett Wallace, Deputy Director 

Supervisors Schaefer and Stacey moved to approve the agenda as presented. The motion 
carried 5-0. 

Supervisors Schaefer and Monroe moved to approve the September 17, 2012 meeting 
minutes as prepared. The motion carried 5-0. 

Public comment period - No one in the audience asked for recognition to speak. 

Regular Business 
Report/Presentation by Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) 
Southeast Region staff 
~ Region priorities 
~ Mega projects update 
~ Six-year program in subject county 
~ Status of 2012 Routine Maintenance Agreement (RMA) 
~ Review funding for 2013 RMA 
~ Status of the Local Bridge Inspection Program 
~ Safety 
County Administrator Bretl said the county works as a partner with the DOT in maintaining our 
state highways. Kevin Brunner added that we have a good working relationship with the Region. 
He invited DOT Southeastern Region staff to address the committee, thanked them for coming, 
and said that DOT is visiting all the counties in the region to introduce themselves and discuss 
current operations, the status of the Routine Maintenance Agreements (RMA), and long-range 
plans. Brett Wallace, Deputy Director, said their Waukesha office has filled 50+ positions and 
that they are in the process of training and developing a new system ofperformance 
management, called MAPSS, which stands for Mobility, Accountability, Preservation, Safety 
and Service. Statewide, the DOT is developing long-range plans to sustain transportation 



funding, and the results should be available next year. The committee packet and handouts 
contain data on funding, costs by project, long-range construction plans, etc. Wallace thanked 
the Public Works Department for their dedicated service. Brian Bliesner, Highway Operations 
Chief, mentioned the organizational chart for the department which was in the packet. He is the 
main contact for all construction issues. The information provided also contains major corridor 
studies and descriptions of a dozen major projects. Bunmi Olapo, Project Development Section 
Chief, gave an overview of State rehabilitation projects, and the six-year program for Walworth 
County. A copy of the program report and maps are in the packet. He gave a brief explanation 
ofthe project map legends. Kevin Brunner pointed out that the bridge on CTH NN over USH 12 
has been moved up to late March of2015, which will affect our reconstruction ofCTH NN, 
moving it up two years. The committee posed brief questions on upcoming projects. Adrian 
Lopez, Maintenance Supervisor, drew attention to the Walworth County 2012 costs by project, 
with detail breakdowns. He explained the overall balance sheet for the 2012 Routine 
Maintenance Agreement (RMA). The scope ofwork is encompassed and discretionary projects 
broken down. Most of the dollars are spent in the winter months, he added. Chair Russell said 
she receives lots of complaints about mowing not done on state highways. This area relies 
heavily on its tourist business, and the roadways don't look good. Bliesner said that the trend 
has been downward for the last decade, and the county is limited to mowing the state sections 
once per year, unless mowing can be justified for safety reasons. Roadways and bridges are the 
highest priorities right now. He urged the committee to contact their legislators with their 
concerns. Lopez talked about the 2013 RMA. The process begins in January of the preceding 
year, and they look at facilities that have changed, and create a statewide database used for all 
counties as a means of allocating dollars through a Level of Service (LOS) model. By June, 
most of the data is input; it is audited during July and August and finalized in September. By the 
end ofOcto berl early November, the Agreements are presented to the counties. Included in the 
materials provided by the DOT are 2013 breakdowns, the Southeast Region totals, and 
breakdowns for our county only. Supervisor Monroe asked why Walworth County's allocation 
was comparatively low, and what specifics affect allocations? Lopez said the model tries to take 
everything into account, including information provided by each county individually, such as 
labor rates, materials, etc. He will provide a more detailed breakdown to Brunner, Lopez said. 
Wallace added that infrastructure is the biggest criteria - increases in allocations are typically in 
counties that have added infrastructure. Winter severity is also taken into consideration. The 
DOT also provided safety information to the committee which contains accident rates broken 
down by county and information on roundabouts. The pilot project in Walworth County for 
rumble strips on centerlines was also discussed. Wallace commented favorably on the Public 
Works Department newsletter, saying that it is a good method of providing safety and project 
information. As to the question about installing rumble strips on all future roadwork projects, 
Olapo said the investigation into areas where drivers tend to cross lanes and cause accidents will 
determine future locations and plans for the rumble strips. Brunner thanked the officials for their 
attendance and information, and added that DOT would like to meet with the counties at least 
annually. 

State of Wisconsin 2012 Routine Maintenance Agreement 
Brunner said that when he took his position with the county in July the Agreement hadn't been 
signed. As a symbolic gesture, a number of counties didn't sign the Agreement because of 
underfunding. We will still receive our money, he said, and he signed it on behalf of the county. 
There is a strong impetus at the legislative level to change to increase the funding for 
maintenance. 

2 



Referral from October 9, 2012 County Board of Supervisors meeting: Communication 
from Enbridge U.S., Inc. concerning increased activity along Enbridge rights-of-way, i.e., 
clearing vegetation, surveying, digging, etc. Supervisors Monroe and Stacey moved to 
place the communication on me. The motion carried 4-0. [Supervisor Schaefer briefly 
stepped out of the meeting.] 

Presentation by Sheriff's Office concerning the 2013 purchase of a tactical response vehicle 
The Sheriff and Undersheriff and other officials from the department were present to more fully 
explain the tactical response vehicle and to answer specific questions. Bretl said he asked that 
this item be discussed because of the number of questions raised by Supervisors, such as whether 
federal funding is available for the purchase; what type/make ofvehicle it is; and is this the best 
vehicle for the department's needs. He also asked if drug forfeiture money could be used 
towards the purchase. Sheriff Graves responded that no federal funding is available. The 
Walworth County Drug unit in Walworth County is run by a separate board. The money 
confiscated is used for overtime expense, aid to other municipalities, operations of the 
department and undercover vehicle purchases. Undersheriff Kurt Picknell said that the vehicle 
they specified has a 95% share of the market, and they received positive testimony on the vehicle 
from user departments. There is $283,000 budgeted in 2013 for the purchase. The vehicle is a 
Lenco Bearcat, made in Massachusetts and has a Ford diesel engine. It is an armored rescue 
vehicle. Lt. Green distributed photos of their current vehicle and of the Bearcat, which is 
anticipated to have a 25-30 year life expectancy. Bretl reminded everyone that if the vehicle is 
included in the 2013 budget adoption the specifications would still have to be presented to the 
Public Works Committee for approval. 

Request to name the Public Works drive after Jerry Himebauch 
Brunner said the department would like to name the Public Works driveway after Jerry 
Himebauch, who died in a tragic work accident in July. Staff is also planning on constructing a 
memorial for Jerry on the grounds. Supervisors Schaefer and Stacey moved to approve 
naming the Public Works drive after Jerry Himebauch. The motion carried unanimously. 

Major capital projects: 
~ Health and Human Services boiler replacement project change orders (p. 38-40) 

Supervisors Schaefer and Stacey moved to approve the change orders for owner 
direct purchasing (DPW-BF-001, 002 and 003). The motion carried 5-0. 

~ Request for change in project scope 
Huber security upgrades 
Jail and Huber flooring/repair replacement 
Brunner said the requests are not change orders, or budget amendments, but changes in 

project scope. Jail Administrator John Delaney said that a couple of additional things needed to 
be done as part of the security upgrades, including reprogramming the system and wiring doors 
for the former Huber area that is now secure jail space. As part of the enhancements, a dumpster 
needs to be moved to a bay with a secured chute. An intercom needs adding at the Huber 
entrance. As to the flooring repair/replacement project, there are areas that need more immediate 
attention than originally scheduled. The projects are within budget and no additional funds are 
requested. Supervisors Stacey and Schaefer moved to approve the change in scope to the 
Huber security upgrades and jail and Huber flooring repair/replacement projects. The 
motion carried 5-0. 

3 



~ Final payment to Scherrer construction. Supervisors Stacey and Monroe moved 
approval of the final payment to Scherrer Construction for the security upgrades to the jail 
Huber dorms A G. The motion carried 5-0. 

~ Update on CTH D roadwork project and lien waiver fIled in connection with the 
project. Bretl said the lien waiver was discussed at the Executive Committee meeting 

earlier in the day. The issue is that with subcontractors filing liens against the general contractor, 
we have to withhold a certain amount from payments to the general contractor until the liens are 
satisfied. Bretl asked for a brief report on the CTH D roadwork. Director of Operations Larry 
Price reported there remains some culvert work and landscaping on the north side. All the 
paving is done and they are waiting on some drainage pipes which are supposed to be delivered 
within the week. He and Brunner were out at the site today and the project is 97 - 98% 
complete. Price reported that a concrete subcontractor had received notification from Super Mix 
that they intended on filing a lien against B.R. Amon & Sons for payment. He said he has 
received no confirmation of the lien. Apparently Amon has been receiving payment but is not 
paying its subcontractors. At last week's project meeting, Amon's manager reported that the 
issue was being taken care of. Brunner added that the county is making every effort to assure the 
general contractor is paid within 7-10 days of invoice submission. PurchasingiBusiness Office 
Manager Peggy Watson said the county has a 5% contingency and is holding back $103,000 in 
payment as of this date. Supervisor Schaefer asked if there was any way the county could avoid 
these circumstances in the future. Bred said that within the last two projects, the liens have 
eventually been satisfied, and that the county is bound to accept the lowest responsible, 
responsive bidder on highway projects. On the positive side, Bred said we have always received 
favorable pricing from Amon. No action on this item. 

Next regularly scheduled Public Works Committee meeting date and time: Monday, 
November 19, 2012 - 3:30 p.m. 

Supervisors Stacey and Schaefer moved to adjourn. The motion carried 5-0 and the 
meeting concluded at 4:56 p.m. 

Minutes recorded by Becky Bechtel, Public Works Administrative Assistant 

Note: meeting minutes are not considered final until approved by the committee at the next regularly scheduled 
meeting. 

4 



DRAFT 

Walworth County Land Conservation Committee Meeting 

MINUTES 


Monday, October IS" 2012 at 2:00 p.m. 


Walworth County Board Room 114 
Elkhorn, WI 53121 

The LCC Meeting was called to order by chait Kilkenny at 2:39 p.m. 

Roll Call- Committee members present included: Supervisors Kilkenny, Russell, and 
Schiefelbein; Citizen Member Badame; and USDA, FSA Representative Sue Bellman. A quorum 
was declared. 

County Staff present - David Bretl, County Administrator; Michael Cotter, Director, Land Use & 
Resource Management (LURM); Louise Olson, Deputy Director, Land Use & Resource 
Management, LURM; Fay Amerson, Urban Manager, LURM; and Joeann Douglas, Recording 
Secretary. 

Also in attendance - David Terrall, USDA APHIS; Greg IgI, USDA NRCS, Carl Redenius, 
Walworth County Supervisor 

Approval of Agenda - Vice-Chair Russell and Citizen Member Badame moved and seconded 
approval of the agenda as presented. Motion carried 5-0. 

Approval of Minutes - USDAIFSA Representative Bellman and Citizen Member Badame 
moved and seconded approval of the September 17, 2012 minutes. Motion carried 5-0. 

Public Comment - None 

Wildlife Abatement Program - 2013 Budget and 2012 Crop Prices Approval- David Terrall, 
USDA/APHIS explained these are pass-through funding for the county. There are few changes for 
2013. Louise Olson also said we do have the $6,679.48 total funding included in the 2013 budget. 
Supervisor Schiefelbein and Vice-Chair Russell moved and seconded to approve the 2013 
Wildlife Abatement budget as presented. Motion carried 5-0. 

Mr. Terrall provided annual yearly average proposed crop prices as well as the JUly-September, 
2012 average crop prices which are more indicative of the year due to the unusual growing 
conditions in 2012. USDAIFSA Representative Bellman agreed that the July-September crop prices 
should be used. USDAIFSA Representative Bellman and Vice-Chair Russell moved and 
seconded to approve crop prices proposal using the July-September average crop prices. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

Charlotte Adelman in regard to controlling the spread of Purple Loosestrife in North Lake - Louise 
Olson said we have been dealing with Ms. Adelman's request regarding Purple Loosestrife. 
Correspondence with DNR, our staff, Audrey Green, and Ms. Adelman have occurred. Ms. 
Adelman is requesting our staff to grow the beetles that are natural predators ofPurple Loosestrife. 
We don't have the staff, time or equipment needed to grow the beetles. Since the DNR already has 
a program in place, has agreed to work with Ms. Adelman, and the beetles are already on the plants 
in North Lake, Ms. Olson said the best recourse would be to let the DNR take the lead. We will be 

http:6,679.48


writing articles for the newspapers regarding invasive species. Citizen Member Badame and 
Vice-Chair Russell moved and seconded to place the correspondence on ide. Motion carried 
5-0. 

Initial Determination received from Baker Enterprises, Inc. - Michael Cotter said we met our 
statutory obligations and had set up a hearing which was then adjourned by Baker's attorney. No 
new hearing has been set as yet. Mr. Cotter will keep abreast of any changes. Supervisor 
Schiefelbein and Citizen Member Badame moved and seconded to place Attorney 
Thompson's letter on ide. Motion carried 5-0. 

Wastewater Management in the Linn Sanitary District - Louise Olson said Ted Peters was 
informing the LCC of all the work that has been done around Geneva Lake. The Sanitation 
Division ofLURM has been working with Mr. Peters on reviewing these sanitary systems. There 
are approximately 100 systems not yet reviewed. LURM staff, Mr. Peters and a Linn Sanitary 
District representative will be meeting in the future to continue the review. No action needed by 
LCC. 

Communication received from Supervisor Carl Redenius in regard to allowing the removal of 
invasive species when they grow in the shoreyard. - Michael Cotter said Mr. Redenius's letter 
indicated a citation was issued. Mr. Redenius said it is not a Citation; it was a Stop Work Order. 
The person who was issued the Stop Work Order is Pat McIntire. Her options were to pay a $663 
fine or pay $300+ to get a conservation plan to remove the buckthorn and find something to replace 
it. Mr. Redenius said he felt the cost was excessive since it would be a good thing to remove the 
invasive buckthorn. Louise Olson said anyone removing woody vegetation in the shoreyard would 
be required to obtain a permit. The LURM was contacted by two constituents complaining about 
the cutting. Ms. Olson said with the proper plan, the cutting would be approved, but no permit was 
obtained. Fay Amerson explained the process of obtaining a permit and said ifwork commences 
without a permit the individual is assessed a double fee which is the reason it was $300 in this case. 
If buckthorn is not removed properly it will grow back and the conservation plan indicates proper 
removal techniques. Mr. Redenius asked about a $100 Final Inspection fee. Ms. Olson said we did 
not know what the $100 reference was about. Ms. Amerson said there could be a compliance 
inspection fee, but we have some discretion on imposing it. Ms. Amerson said Ms. McIntire did not 
respond back to us regarding having a conservation plan. There is also a state requirement that 
must be adhered to regarding invasive species. We can set the fees but can't allow people to 
remove whatever they want in the 35 foot shoreline setback. In 2005 the County Zoning Ordinance 
was amended from NO removal ofvegetation within the 35 foot shoreline setback to allowing 
invasive species removal with a Zoning permit and Conservation plan. There is a fee required for 
the plan review. 

Next Meeting Date: Ifnecessary, Monday, November 19,2012,2:00 p.m. At this point, we have 
nothing for the agenda. 

Adjournment On motion and second by Supervisor Schiefelbein and Citizen Member 
Badame, Chair Kilkenny adjourned the meeting at 3:24 p.m. Motion carried 5-0 

Submitted by Joeann Douglas, Recording Secretary. Minutes are not considered final until 
approved by the committee at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 



Walworth County Board of Adjustment 

MINUTES 


October 10,2012 - Hearing - 8:30 AM 

October 11,2012 - Meeting - 8:30 AM 


County Board Room 

Government Center - Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


A hearing and decision meeting ofthe Walworth County Board ofAdjustment was held 
on October 10 & 11,2012, in the County Board Room of the Government Center in Elkhorn, 
Wisconsin. Those present on October 10,2012, were Chair John Roth, Vice-Chair Gregory E. 
Guidry, Secretary Ann Seaver and Franklin B. Jones, 2nd Alternate. Deb Grube, Senior Zoning 
Officer, and Wendy Boettcher, recording secretary of the Land Use & Resource Management 
Department were in attendance. Those present on October 11, 2012, were Chair John Roth, 
Vice-Chair Gregory Guidry, Secretary Ann Seaver and Franklin B. Jones, 2nd Alternate. Deb 
Grube, Senior Zoning Officer, and Wendy Boettcher, recording secretary of the Land Use & 
Resource Management Department were in attendance. Gregory E. Guidry stepped down and 
Franklin B. Jones sat in for both the hearing and decision of Raymond C. & Joellyn G. Demara I 
Troy Township in order to avoid possible conflict of interest due to Gregory Guidry's building 
inspector duties in the Town ofTroy. "Sign-in" sheets listing attendees on October 10, 2012, 
and October 11, 2012, are kept on file as a matter of record. 

The October 10,2012, hearing was called to order by Chair John Roth at 8:30 AM. 
Wendy Boettcher conducted roll call and verified that there was a quorum. Those present were 
same as listed above. Ann Seaver motioned to approve the agenda as amended to remove 
item #2, Thomas P. Dine I Linn Tow'1lship. Seconded by Gregory E. Guidry. Motion 
carried. 3-favor, O-oppose. Gregory E. Guidry motioned to approve the September 12 & 
13, 2012, Minutes and dispense with the reading. Seconded by Ann Seaver. Motion 
carried. 3-favor, O-oppose. After testimony of all cases, Gregory E. Guidry motioned to 
recess until 8:30 A.M. on Thursday, October 11, 2012. Seconded by Ann Seaver. Motion 
carried. 3-favor, O-oppose. The October 10, 2012, hearing went into recess at approximately 
9:55 AM. 

On October 11, 2012, at 8:30 AM., Chair John Roth called the decision meeting to order. 
Wendy Boettcher conducted roll call and verified that there was a quorum. Those present were 
same as listed above. Ann Seaver motioned to approve the agenda as amended to remove 
item #2, Thomas P. Dine I Linn Township. Seconded by Gregory E. Guidry. Motion 
carried. 3-favor,0-oppose. After the decisions were completed, Gregory E. Guidry 
motioned to adjourn until the November 14, 2012, hearing at 8:30 A.M. Seconded by Ann 
Seaver. Motion carried. 3-favor,0-oppose. The October 11, 2012, decision meeting 
adjourned at approximately 9: 10 A.M. 

Four variance hearings were scheduled and details of the October 10,2012, hearings and 
the October 11,2012, decisions are on audio recorded discs which are on file and available to the 
public upon request I video to view on our website: www.co.walworth.wi.us. 

New Business - Oath of Office - alternate member 

Page 1 of5 

http:www.co.walworth.wi.us


Franklin B. Jones took the oath of office to become the 2nd Alternate member of the Board of 
Adjustment. The term will expire June 30, 2014, or until a successor is named. 

New Business - Variance Petitions 

Disc #1 Hearing Count #8:44:07 - 9:01 :52 I Disc #2 Decision - Count #8:32:52 - 8:36:36 
The First Hearing was Raymond C. & Joellyn G. Demara, owners - Section(s) 16 - Troy 
Township 

Applicants are requesting a variance from Section(s) 74-51 ofWalworth County's Code of 
Ordinances - Zoning to permit the construction of an addition to a single-family residence. 

REQUIRED BY ORDINANCE: The Ordinance requires a 100' rear yard setback. 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicants are requesting a 90' rear yard setback. The request is 
a variance from Section(s) 74-51 ofWalworth County's Code of Ordinances Zoning to permit 
the construction of an addition to a single-family residence. 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT DECISION: The Walworth County Board ofAdjustment, 
during the meeting of October 10 & 11,2012, for the petition ofRaymond C. & JoeUyn G. 
DeMara, owners voted to APPROVE the request for a 90' rear yard setback. 

A motion was made by Ann Seaver to approve the variance request. Seconded by Franklin 
B. Jones. Motion carried. 3-favor O-oppose 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FINDINGS: The Board found that there were steep slopes on 
the property that did prove exceptional or unique circumstances rather than considerations 
personal to the property owner. The Board found the 100' setback on the small parcel to be 
overly burdensome. The Board found the variance request would facilitate safer access for 
handicapped children. The Board found the location of the addition would cause no harm to the 
neighbors. There was one letter of support from the Town ofTroy. There was no opposition. 

Disc # 1 Hearing - Count #NIA I Disc #2 Decision - Count #NIA 
The Second Hearing was Thomas P. Dine, owner - Section(s) 18 - Linn Township 

Applicant is requesting a variance from Section(s) 74-163(3) ofWalworth County's Code of 
Ordinances - Shoreland Zoning for the location of a fence. 

REQUIRED BY ORDINANCE: The Ordinance requires a fence to be 2' from any right-of
way and also prohibits any obstruction above the height of2 Yz feet above the plane in the vision 
triangle. 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicant is requesting a 0' street yard setback and to locate a 4' 
high fence in the vision triangle. The request is a variance from Section(s) 74-163(3) of 
Walworth County's Code of Ordinances - Shoreland Zoning for the location of a fence. 

Page 2 of5 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT DECISION: The Walworth County Board of Adjustment, 
during the meeting of October 10 & 11, 2012, did not vote on the petition ofThomas P. Dine, 
owner. 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FINDINGS: This petition has been moved to the November 14 
& 15, 2012, Board ofAdjustment agenda at the applicant's request. 

Disc #1 Hearing - Count #9:01 :53 9:13:461 Disc #2 Decision - Count #8:36:37 8:39:52 
The Third Hearing was Kathleen E. & Robert C. Lindsten Trust, owner 1Robert C. Lindsten, 
applicant - Section(s) 36 - La Grange Township 

Applicants are requesting a variance from Section(s) 74-167 174-181/74-221 ofWalworth 
County's Code of Ordinances - Shoreland Zoning to pennit the location of a walkway and a 
portion of a patio in the shore yard. 

REQUIRED BY ORDINANCE: The Ordinance requires a 75' setback for all structures and 
pennits a walkway iflocated in the view 1access corridor. 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicants are requesting an extension to a patio within 75' of 
the shore and a walkway outside the view 1access corridor. The request is a variance from 
Section(s) 74-167 174-181/74-221 of Walworth County's Code of Ordinances - Shoreland 
Zoning to pennit the location of a walkway and a portion of a patio in the shore yard. 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT DECISION: The Walworth County Board of Adjustment, 
during the meeting of October 10 & 11,2012, for the petition ofKathleen E. & Robert C. 
Lindsten Trust, owner 1Robert C. Lindsten, applicant, voted to APPROVE the request for an 
extension to a patio within 75' of the shore and a walkway outside the view 1access corridor. 

A motion was made by Gregory E. Guidry to approve the variance request. Seconded by 
Ann Seaver. Motion carried. 3-favor O-oppose 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FINDINGS: The Board found the variance request to be a safety 
issue and approval will allow access to the lake as quickly and safely as possible in the case of an 
emergency. The Board found to approve the variance request would cause no hann to public 
interests as the patio area is not visible from either the street side or the lake side of the property. 
The Board found the variance approval was a small increment of relief and allows completion of 
the walkway to meet the patio. 
The Board found the owner has agreed to work with the Walworth County Land Conservation 
Department to minimize any possible land disturbance and runoff. 
There was no support. There was no opposition. 

Disc #1 Hearing - Count #9:13:47 - 9:55:151 Disc #2 Decision - Count #8:39:53 8:46:51 
The Fourth Hearing was Alice R. Reilly Trust, owner 1Kurt Nelson, The Fixer Guys LLC, 
applicant - Section(s) 26 - La Grange Township 

Applicants are requesting a variance from Section(s) 74-167/74-181/74-221 of Walworth 
County's Code of Ordinances - Shoreland Zoning to pennit the construction of an addition, roof, 
alteration and decks. 

Page 3 of5 



REQUIRED BY ORDINANCE: The Ordinance requires a 45.28' shore yard setback (average) 
and an 11.2' side yard (16% lot width). 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicants are requesting an approximate 27.4' shore yard 
setback and an approximate 2,4' side yard. The request is a variance from Section(s) 74-167 / 
74-181/74-221 ofWalworth County's Code of Ordinances Shoreland Zoning to pennit the 
construction ofan addition, roof, alteration and decks. 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT DECISION: The Walworth County Board ofAdjustment, 
during the meeting of October 10& 11, 2012, for the petition ofAlice R. Reilly Trust, owner / 
Kurt Nelson, The Fixer Guys LLC, applicant, voted to MODIFY AND APPROVE the request 
for an approximate 27,4'shore yard setback and an approximate 2,4' side yard. 

A motion was made by Gregory E. Guidry to approve the variance request with 
modifications. Seconded by Ann Seaver. Motion carried. 3-favor O-oppose 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT FINDINGS: The Board found to modify and approve the 
variance request requiring the removal of approximately 5'ofwidth on the south side ofthe 
building in line with the inside handrail of the existing stairway, and to approve the "eyebrow" 
addition in front of the doorway on the north side of the house was in keeping with the purpose 
and intent of the zoning ordinance. The Board found the steep slope from the house to the lake 
to be a unique property limitation. The Board found approval of the north side "eyebrow" 
addition to be a safety issue. The Board found after years of erosion the deck footings are in 
need of the repairs necessary to protect the safety and integrity of the residence. The Board 
found to approve the variance request would cause no hann to public interests. The Board found 
the owner is willing to reduce the size of the decks and come more into compliance with the 
zoning ordinance. The Board found approval of the modified variance request will reduce 
impervious surface and reduce the visual effect from the lake. The Board found the owner has 
agreed to work with the Walworth County Land Conservation Department in Spring to assure 
adequate vegetation. There was one letter of comment from the Town of LaGrange. 

Other 

A. 	Discussion / possible action regarding a reconsideration request for Thomas & Paula 
Tomek, Town of La Grange 
After discussion the Board ofAdjustment found to deny the reconsideration request. A 
motion was made by Gregory E. Guidry to deny the reconsideration request. 
Seconded by Ann Seaver. Motion carried. 3-favor O-oppose 

B. 	 Discussion / possible action regarding status of Board ofAdjustment members 
Franklin B. Jones was officially welcomed as the newest Board of Adjustment member. 

C. 	 Discussion / possible action on Township correspondence - none 

Staff Reports 

A. 	 Court cases update - none 

Page 4 of5 



B. Distribution of reports, handouts and correspondence - none 

Proposed discussion for next agenda 

The following items were requested to be put on the November 2012 agenda, if applicable: 

A. Discussion / possible action on Township correspondence 
B. Court cases update 
C. Distribution of reports, handouts and correspondence 

ANN SEAVER 
W AL WORTH COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

These minutes are not final until approved by the Board of Adjustment at the next scheduled 
hearing date. 

Page 5 of5 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT HEARING 

Wednesday, October 10,2012 


IPLEASE SIGN IN I 


i 


NAME 
(Please Print) 

ADDRESS TOWNSHIP & PHONE 
(Please Print) NUl\1BER (please Print) 

--=s- o-t ! \ '-\ "" .b .e.H~""" rd. ~c.~ ~1i :~.t~~-I ~\r V~() Le V( ). • 'J Or ~ < 
7> J.. w6't:(0'1 sr£It..t...IJ./~ t,A)NVI.J err ( J.. (U:.({4-4t.c
/\Ol1trtr I NOsrW :£.t......<. J.p>rt;.../ . :.?&.2 ~ 2'/;;' .. so 33 

k{;:.,,/ AI~ /'SCV1 ~B v...,·~ ~ J:/:=tO{
"A. V.'.l-'.LiJ. wr Zto2 949 32S7 

! T\-\OVY\.~ ":. 
~.:.. ':.>c >c. i Xl. ( 

i\ ,\ AWV\. , IA Ai ( 4 ""c:r l;: - :viti"!..';.\. £' 21; 2 ' 2'1Cl. r."f2 I 

I i / ,/tl£ tz9E~ ,tt.)~'~ &1 I rg'11;;- s0) -1Z3h/-li I i'.. !'[" :;:.. /) ~;ZJN//j 
I 

~ 

7 ... 

! 
! 

i 

I 

I 

I 
i 

I 

i 

I 

! 

I 

I 

I 
i 

I 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT DECISION 

Thursday, October 11,2012 


I PLEASE SIGN IN I 

NAME 
(Please Print) 

II )_
' lC{A)t ,}jefe ~ 

I 

i 

I 

ADDRESS TOWNSHIP & PHONE 
(Please Print) NUMBER (Please Print) 

2tb 7o~_J1;dJ kC.kJ1cPe:).J Wr26Z9<f9 {if! 
I I 

. 

I 

I 

I 

. 

! 

I 

I 

I 



DRAFT 
Walworth County Finance Committee 

MEETING MINUTES 
October 9, 2012 - 5:45 p.m. 

County Board Room 114 - Government Center 
Elkhorn, Wisconsin 

The meeting was called to order at approximately 5:50 p.m. by Chairperson Russell. 

Roll call- In attendance were Chairperson Russell, Vice Chairperson Grant, Supervisors 
Kilkenny, Schaefer and Stacey. A quorum was declared. 

Others present Supervisors Tim Schiefelbein, Rich Brandl, Tim Brellenthin, Ken Momoe, 
Carl Redenius, Dave Weber, ; David Bretl, County Administrator; Suzi Hagstrom, 
Labor/Employee Relations Director; Nicki Andersen, Deputy County Administrator Finance; 
Linda Seemeyer, LHCC SuperintendentIHHS Director; Tracy Moate, Director of Special 
Education; Larry Price, Director of Operations; Michael Cotter, LURM DirectorlDeputy 
Corporation Counsel; John Miller, Assistant Superintendent - Facilities; Nicole Hill, Deputy 
County Clerk; Kim Bushey, County Clerk; Peggy Watson, OfficelPurchasing Manager; Lori 
Muzatko, HS Manager Aging/Long Term Care; Anne Prince, HS Supervisor Nutrition; John 
Miller, Assistant DPW Superintendent; Franklin Jones, Citizen. 

Approval of the agenda was moved and seconded by Supervisors Stacey and Kilkenny, with 
no withdrawals, and carried 5 O. 

Public comment period none 

Award recommendation for Health and Human Services' Nutrition Program for Older 
Adults - Supervisor Kilkenny and Vice Chairperson Grant moved and seconded approval 
of the bid award as recommended. Chair Russell pointed out the more than $21,000 difference 
in the two bids. She asked where Feil's Catering is located. Muzatko stated that Feil's is in 
Randolph, Wisconsin, which is over an hour away. Chair Russell asked what the selection 
criteria were. Muzatko explained that the equipment that was used to keep the food hot and cold, 
the menu, and the dietary requirements all factored into the decision. Prince was confident that 
Best Events could meet the dietary requirements. She added that the transportation and delivery 
plan from Feil's was incomplete. Prince added that Best Events has better equipment than the 
current provider, which is Hoffinan House. The motion carried 5 - O. 

Chairperson Russell had no reports. 

The next meetings of the finance committee were confirmed for October 18, 2012 at 9:30 a.m. 
and Wednesday November 21,2012 at 9:30 a.m., which was the rescheduled date because of 
Thanksgiving. 

Adjournment. On motion and second by Supervisor Kilkenny and Supervisor Stacey, 
Chairperson Russell adjourned the meeting at approximately 5:53 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted by Tammy Werblow, assistant to the county administrator. These 
minutes are subject to approval by the committee. 



Walworth County Human Resources Committee 

MINUTES 


October 9,2012 - 5:00 p.m. 


County Board Room 114 - Government Center 

Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


The meeting was called to order at approximately 5:09 p.m. by Chairperson Brandl. 

Roll call In attendance were Chairperson Brandl, Vice Chairperson Grant, Supervisors 
Redenius, Monroe and Brellenthin. A quorum was declared. 

Supervisors Nancy Russell, Tim Schiefelbein, Dave Weber, Dan Kilkenny; 
David Bretl, County Administrator; Suzi Hagstrom, LaborlEmployee Relations Director; Nicki 
Andersen, Deputy County Administrator- Finance; Linda Seemeyer, LHCC 
SuperintendentlHHS Director; Michael Cotter, LURM DirectorlDeputy Corporation Counsel; 
Tracy Moate, Director of Special Education; Larry Price, Director ofOperations; John Miller, 
Assistant DPW Superintendent; Franklin Jones, Citizen. 

Approval of the agenda was moved and seconded by Vice Chairperson Grant and Supervisor 
Brellenthin, with no withdrawals, and carried 5 - O. 

none 

Resolution No. 40-10/12 Adopting Pay Ranges for Certain Hourly Employees. Hagstrom asked 
if there were any questions. The pay ranges are just as they were when discussed at the last 
meeting. 

Vice Chairperson Grant and Supervisor Monroe moved and seconded approval of Res. No. 
40-10/12 Adopting Pay Ranges for Certain Hourly Employees. The motion carried 5 - O. 

Chairperson Brandl had no reports. 

The next regular meeting of the human resources committee was confinned for November 5, 
2012 at 3:00 p.m. Staff mentioned that the November 21 st meeting may be moved as well due to 
the Thanksgiving holiday. 

Adjournment. On motion and second by Supervisor Monroe and Vice Chairperson Grant, 
Chairperson Brandl adjourned the meeting at approximately 5:11 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted by Tammy Werblow, assistant to the county administrator. These 
minutes are subject to approval by the committee. 



Booth Lake Management District 

P. O. Box 778 


East Troy, WI 53120 

Phone: 262-642-7285 Fax: 262-642-7493 Email: gmheg@wLrr.com 

NOTICE OF 

Booth Lake Management District Commissioners Meeting 


Saturday, September 29, 2012 at 9:00 AM 

Town of Troy Town Hall, N8870 Briggs Street 


AGENDA 

1. 	 Call meeting to order 
2. 	 Approve minutes of the Meeting of July 22, 2012 
3. 	 Old Business: 

a. 	 Approve fee for services and fiscal signature authority for Paul Nyffeler, 
BLMD Treasurer 

4. 	 Public/Commissioners Comments 
S. 	 Adjourn 

Respectfully submitted 
G. M. Hegeman 

Commissioner/Secreta ry 


September 17, 2012 


Persons with disabilities who need accommodations to attend meetings should contact the BLMD Secretary at 
gmheg@wLrr.com or 642-7285 soon as possible so that needs can be reasonably met Meetings posted at three 
locations in the Town ofTroy: Troy Town Hall FID, N8870 Briggs St, Little Prairie Cemetery, Palmyra Rd., Little 
Prairie, Landmark Services Cooperative, N8265 Cnty Rd. N. Agenda subject to change 24 hours prior to meeting. 

mailto:gmheg@wLrr.com
mailto:gmheg@wLrr.com


BOOTH LAKE MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
P.O. BOX 778 


EAST TROY, WISCONSIN 53120-0778 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BLMD COMMISSIONERS 


September 29,2012 


Present: 
Hank Hubbell, Gary Hegeman. Barry Loveland, Greg McElwee. Stan Muzatko (County 
Board Rep.), Kathy Tober (Town Board Rep.) 

1. 	 Meeting called to order at 9:01 am. 

2. 	 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
July 22, 2012 Meeting 
Motion for approval of the minutes of the July 22, 2012 meeting by Stan Muzatko, 
2nd by Barry Loveland. Motion approved. 

3. 	 OTHER BUSINESS 
a. 	 Approve fee for service and fiscal signatory authority for Paul Nyffeler, CPA 

Hank Hubbell talked about the proposal to have Paul Nyffeler act as 
Treasurer and complete budget management duties for the BLMD. Paul is a 
CPA with an office in East Troy. WI, a Booth Lake property owner, is familiar 
with the by-laws, and currently does budget management for the Lake Beulah 
Management District. He does not want to be appointed as a Commissioner, 
but will manage the budget, pay routine bills, prepare quarterly budget 
reports. and have an annual audit completed, for a fee of $300.00 per annum. 
Non-routine bills will require Board approval prior to payment. The 
Commissioners discussed the proposal and it was determined Paul could not 
officially be appointed as Treasurer (Treasurer must be a Board Member), but 
the Board could contract with Paul to perform fiscal and budget functions. 
Motion to authorize a contract with Paul Nyffeler. CPA for $300.00 per 
annum to manage the BLMD budget, pay routine bills, prepare quarterly 
budget reports and other reports as may be necessary, and have an annual 
audit completed by Greg McElwee, 2nd by Barry Loveland. Motion approved. 
The Board felt it was also necessary to appoint a Commissioner as Treasurer. 
Barry Loveland indicated an interest in being appointed to the position. 
Motion to appoint Barry Loveland as BLMD Treasurer by Gary Hegeman, 2nd 

by Kathy Tober. Motion approved. 

4. 	 PUBLIC/COMMISSIONER'S COMMENTS 
Kathy Tober reported the DNR is in the process of setting a high water mark for 
Booth Lake. 
Kathy noted there were not many tickets issued by the water patrol on Booth 
Lake this year. She will provide a more detailed report to the Board at a future 
meeting. 
Kathy, who is a member of the Park Board. reported the Park is facing 3 major 
maintenance projects: re-shingling the house at the park, repairing steps, and 
repairing a retaining wall behind the house. Some of the Board members 



expressed concern about the boat launch, particularly in light of the low water 
levels. It was noted the Park Board is monitoring t~e condition of the launch. 

- The Commissioners discussed the placement of lake buoys. Kathy mentioned 
new buoys have recently been delivered and will be used next year. Questions 
arose concerning the total number of buoys and placement Kathy agreed to 
provide specific information on the number and placement of buoys at a future 
meeting. 

- The Board discussed the need to have a Booth Lake property owner with a 
liaison to the BLMD Board appointed to the Park Board. A suggestion was made 
that th,e BLMD Board recommend individual property owners to the Town Chair 
for appointment consideration. Hank Hubbell will contact the Town Chair to 
discuss. To help facilitate communicatiolil between the BLMD Board and the 
Park Board, Kathy will see that Park Board agendas and minutes are forwarded 
to the Commissioners. 

7. 	 Motion to adjourn the meeting by Gary Hegeman, 2nd by Barry Loveland. Meeting 
adjourned at 9:50 am. 

Respectfully submitted by 

Gary Hegeman - BLMD Secretary 




DRAFT 

Walworth County Children with Disabilities Education Board 


MINUTES 


September 19,20125:00 p.m. 

County Board Room 114 - Government Center 


Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by Chair Weber. 


Ron call- In attendance were, Chair Weber, Secretary Grant, Supervisors Monroe, Schaefer, and 

Schiefelbein. A quorum was declared. 


County Staff Present - Director WCCDEB Tracy Moate, and County Administrator Dave Bret!. 

County Supervisors Present - Nancy Russell 

Agenda Approval - Approval of the agenda, as presented, was moved and seconded by 

Supervisors Schaefer and Grant with no withdrawals. Motion carried 5-0. 


Minute approval- Supervisors Schiefelbein and Monroe moved and seconded approval of 

the June 20, 2012 minutes as prepared. Motion carried 5-0. 


Public comment period - None 

New Business - 2013 Proposed CDEB Budget. Tracy Moate prepared a power point 
presentation describing the proposed bUdget. Subjects regarding the tax levy, 2013 appropriation 
summary and comparisons to the 2012 budget were discussed. Once again, there was a negative 
levy impact. Full-time equivalents, CDEB employees still in the districts, transition agreement 
progress and transfer of service were also part of the presentation. The full time equivalency has 
decreased by 5. The total number ofcurrent employees in district is 16.5 FTE's and since year 
200679.85 FTE's transitioned back to district responsibility. Two capital projects, pool filter 
system and gymnasium sound system are included in the proposed budget. 

Amending section 15.17 of the Walworth County Code of Ordinances relating to the 
reclassification of a Physical Therapy Assistant. Currently there is a vacancy at Lakeland School 
for a Physical Therapy Assistant. Historically there has been difficulty filling this position . 

. Tracy Moate would like the Board to consider reclassifying this position to a part time Physical 
Therapist. The request was discussed at the HR meeting and passed. A motion to approve the 
reclassification was made and seconded by Supervisors Schaefer and Monroe. Motion 
passed 5-0. 

Rtmorts & correspondence 
CDEB Director Moate reported on the result ofthe parent survey that was done at the end ofthe 
2011112 school year. The Supervisors received a summary of the parent survey. The results 
were favorable and are another tool that can be used to improve Lakeland Schools service 
delivery for the upcoming school year. 

http:200679.85


DRAFT 

Enrollment figures for the start of the new school year were reported. Lakeland School has 215 
students enrolled as of September 4, 2012; 21 being new students. 
Board members received a handout outlining OPI's five year reform package. Some changes 
will be the addition of a accountability report card for the school and a transition plan that is 
directly sent to DPI at the time of the IEP meeting. Tracy will keep the Board updated as the 
changes take place. 

Set time and date ofnext meeting - October 17,2012 at 5:00 pm. 

Adjourn - Motion and second to adjourn the meeting at 6:00 pm were made by Supervisors 
Schaefer and Grant, motion carried 5-0. 

Minutes recorded by Kathy Kramer, CDEB 

Note: Meeting minutes are not considered final until approved by the committee 
at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 



County Board Human Resources Committee 
Draft Minutes 

Wednesday, September 19,2012 - 3:00 p.m. 

County Board Room 114 


Walworth County Government Center 

100 W. Walworth St., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


Chainnan Brandl called the meeting to order. 

A quorum of committee members in attendance included Chainnan Brandl, Vice Chairman 
Grant and Supervisors Brellenthin, Monroe and Redenius. 

Others in attendance included County Board Chair Russell; Linda Seemeyer, HHS Director; 
Nicole Andersen, Deputy County Administrator - Finance; Bernadette Janiszewski, Lakeland 
Health Care Center (LHCC) Administrator; Dale Wilson, PayrolllBenefits Manager; John Orr, 
Information Technology Director; Liz Aldred, Deputy HHS Director; Kevin Brunner, Director
Central Services; Kimberly Bushey, County Clerk; Stacie Johnson, Budget Analyst; Sheriff 
Dave Graves; Colleen Lesniak, Volunteer Services Organizer; Val Etzel, County Treasurer's 
Office; Connie Woolever, Register of Deeds; Jessica Lanser, Comptroller; Tracy Moate, 
Lakeland School Director of Special Education; and, Seth Reybaum, Administrative Assistant 
Finance Department. 

Agenda approval was moved by Vice Chairman Grant, moving items 7a and 7b to "Unfinished 
Business" to be discussed at the same time as item 8e. Supervisor Brellenthin seconded the 
motion, which carried 5 - O. 

Approval of the July 18, 2012 joint Human Resources Committee - Children with Disabilities 
Education Board minutes was moved and seconded by Supervisors Grant and Redenius and 
carried 5 - O. 

There was no comment during the public comment period. 

New Business 
Personnel appeals to administrator's budget, Code Section 15-323 amendment relating to 
flexible work scheduling for hourly employees and Section 120 Code amendment pertaining to 
alternate work schedules, and alternative work schedules for certain employees at Health & 
Human Services - Mental HealthIAODA. There was one personnel appeal, the basic premise of 
which was a request to add two HS Specialist I positions at HHS. Mr. Bretl had discussed with 
Linda Seemeyer how the positions would be paid for. The work is currently carried out at HHS 
through independent contractors. Budget Appeal "C" was distributed to committee members. 
Ms. Seemeyer explained that staff recently learned Walworth County will receive additional 
state/county grant revenue in an amount totaling $227,888. Because the notice came following 
departmental budget preparation, the additional revenue was not accounted for in the 2013 
budget proposal. The additional revenue can be used to offset the cost of the two positions being 
requested. Seemeyer said an HHS children's case manager recently left and indicated the 
demands of the job were too great for the pay. Currently the case load for each HHS worker is 



Draft Minutes 
September 19, 2012/3:00 p.m. 

Walworth County Human Resources Committee 


Page 2 of6 

more than twenty cases; seventeen per worker is considered a typical county case load. 
Seemeyer said there have been some tough cases in 2012 involving lots of documentation and 
staff time. Eight of nine staffin one HHS unit have resigned their positions. Seemeyer is 
requesting two new HS Specialist I positions to handle the case load. The additional $227,888 
would pay for the positions. Staff recommended reducing .24 FTE worth of casual HS Specialist 
I position in crisis intervention. The savings from this would remain in payroll to cover nights 
and weekends. The overall levy increase due to HHS positions, over time, has been moderate, 
said Bretl, who urged looking at the big picture, Le., levy impact, not simply FTEs. Chairman 
Brandl asked if the committee could approve the appeal with the understanding the positions be 
reviewed in the future. Mr. Bred said the FTEs are not tied to state revenue, and the committee 
will be asked to review how staffing structure is working in June 2013. Appendix A pertaining 
to position changes was included in the county administrator's 2013 budget proposal. Vice 
Chairman Grant moved approval of the two HS Specialist I positions. Supervisor Monroe 
seconded the motion, which carried 5 - O. No further action was required. With regard to 
flexible work scheduling and alternate work schedules, Mr. Bretl encouraged adopting a uniform 
rule indicating it wasn't fair to ask the committee to review this each month from department to 
department. Vice Chairman Grant said the highway workers' 411 0 summer schedule was the 
only exception he would likely support. He thought social services positions could be changed 
to better serve clientele. For the most part, the public expects an 8-hour work day/5-day week. 
Chairman Brandl agreed. Linda Seemeyer indicated that HHS services are provided according to 
client needs, which may not fall between 8 AM and 5 PM. HHS employees do flex a lot oftime, 
she said, because case workers need to work the hours dictated by client needs. Clients don't 
like to keep Friday counseling appointments. Mr. Bred said HHS had a persuasive case; 
however, any department could make an equally persuasive case. Supervisor Monroe asked if 
411 0 highway schedule was still working. Bred stated he had concerns. For example, there was 
no lunch break in 100-degree weather. Kevin Brunner will be reviewing the schedule. 
Supervisor Monroe stated he understood a 411 0 schedule for winter and plowing season but not 
for summer. Nicki Andersen said Monday through Wednesday are high volume payroll days, 
depending on W2s, payroll changes, etc. Bretl stated he opposed flexibility for "hardship" cases 
and prefers a department's workload dictate work hours, not employee circumstances. 
Ordinances do not specify an 8-hour/five-day work week. Supervisor Brellenthin said he 
supported allowing department heads flexibility based on work load, as opposed to 
circumstances and employee convenience; Monroe said he agreed. Ms. Hagstrom said 8-hour 
days/5 days per week did not have to be a hard and fast rule. Bred indicated that employee time 
worked is accurately accounted for by the timekeeping system the county uses. He asked 
whether the committee wanted to give department heads flexibility to administer hours of work 
without creating permanent situations. Somehow, flexibility needs to be accounted for. 
Adequate employee supervision is important in higher risk situations, for example, highway 
work. Kevin Brunner said this had been an issue every place he had worked. He encouraged 
trust and confidence in county management staff. Public Works, for example, must be open 
certain hours each day. Some days, however, it might make sense to mobilize staff and 
equipment depending upon need. Ms. Hagstrom explained that the HHS department tracks 
employee productivity through case load work time. Vice Chairman Grant suggested Hagstrom 
draft an ordinance for committee review. Supervisor Monroe said county board supervisors need 
to trust the department heads. Chairman Brandl indicated his concern the public should be able 



Draft Minutes 
September 19, 2012/3:00 p.m . 

. Walworth Human Resources Committee 

Page 3 

to reach staff in county departments; adequate staffing during normal business hours is a 
reasonable expectation. John Orr said he had flexed employee time for a number of years. For 
example, he might send someone home early in the day that needs to return the following day 
early because a system must be up and running to meet county department needs. Mr. Bret! 
recommended leaving things status quo for now. He indicated that creating some permanency 
but also affording flexibility is important. A draft ordinance will be reviewed at the next HR 
committee meeting. 

Discussion andpossible action regarding hourly market study and 2013 hourly pay ranges. Mr. 
Bretl indicated this was an important component of the budget. On September 19, the city of 
Brookfield approved an across-the-board 2% pay raise for management. This is viewed as a 
problem since there isn't equal effort among employees. There are county employees who have 
not had a raise for over a year. The market study takes a precise look at each county job 
classification. The management pay plan and the market wage study and recommendations 
involved a lot ofwork by Ms. Hagstrom. Bret! encouraged supervisors to ask questions. He 
pointed out that any inequities noted were attributable to collective bargaining agreements over 
the years. Concerning private sector comparables, pay information had to be purchased. In
detail data is available to supervisors, upon request, from Ms. Hagstrom. Hagstrom explained 
that Walworth County is at the edge of being at market and leading the market. Some positions 
topped out at the top of range within 18 months. She tried to even and smooth those among the 
ranges and make them more consistent. She used some private sector comparables, as close as 
Lake Geneva. Just wages, not benefits, were available. Benefit information had to be purchased. 
The market study revealed county pay is higher than market for approximately one-third of 
positions, below market for approximately one-third, and at market for about one-third. 
Hagstrom explained that the first page in each 2012 job category is the range for the current 
group and a snapshot of where the positions are compared to market. In 2012, the county 
implemented changes to its job performance review such that no employee receives a step 
increase unless they earn an above average rating during their performance review. Ranges that 
are at market are already at market for 2013. This will be reviewed every year thereafter to 
determine if adjustment is appropriate. Because steps in some ranges have been added, 
employees could continue to move through steps in the old range and when they reach the top, 
move into the new range. This provides the best opportunity for optimal increase and applies to 
all positions. Chairman Brandl asked about grandfathering and which positions are at higher pay 
ranges than market. Hagstrom and Bred were asked how grandfathered employees would 
remain at the higher-than-market range, given the market doesn't call for that pay level. 
Employees hired in 2012 were hired with reduced benefits compared to employees who were 
with the county before 2012. Employee benefits can cost upwards of$30,000 per employee/per 
year. Vice Chairman Grant felt it would be unfair to change ranges for "grandfathered" 
employees that were informed what the top of their range was when hired. With the proposed 
ranges, 1,200 FTEs will have to be manually input into each year's budget. Each employee will 
have their own individual "track," said Nicki Andersen. For example, someone in step A in the 
former range would take years to move into the new range and reach the top, requiring many 
years ofmanual payroll input. The issue of keeping promises made to employees (Other Post 
Employee Benefits or OPEB) was discussed. Bret! stated he thinks it is important for the county 
to keep the promises it makes to its employees. Chairman Brandl said the county's promise, 



Draft Minutes 
September 19, 2012/3:00 p.m. 

Walworth County Human Resources Committee 


Page 4 of6 

given state actions, should be reviewed each year; the county has the right to change. He asked 
how soon the committee's recommendation needed to go to the board. Hagstrom and Bretl said 
there is money built into the 2013 budget to implement the pay recommendations for the January 
6 and 13 pay cycle, if adopted by the county board. Brandl stated he thinks grandfathering needs 
to be looked at to make it equitable for employees and feasible for the HR and Finance 
departments. Hagstrom explained that "red circled" indicates when a position's hourly rate falls 
outside of the range and remains until it catches up to market. Vice Chairman Grant reiterated 
that he was not in favor of cutting pay rates, even if an employee must remain red circled for a 
long time; Supervisor Monroe agreed. Supervisor Russell said in private industry, business must 
profit or go out ofbusiness and layoff employees. Government operates differently than private 
industry in that its operating expenses are paid for with tax dollars by government's customers, 
the taxpayers. There is a segment of the county work force that is under-paid compared to 
market. The third of employees that are currently overpaid causes suspicion among the public. 
Across-the-board pay raises are not equitable. Ms. Hagstrom indicated she had prepared the 
wage study according to the committee's specifications, discussed several months prior. Brandl 
stated he wanted to hold on action and,come back with ideas about grandfathering those 
employees that are definitely above market. Grant agreed to holding on action; other committee 
members were silent. Now that the hourly pay plan analysis has been completed, the committee 
needs to decide if the proposed pay plans are okay. What to do with existing staff and 
grandfathering are separate issues. Employees paid $6.00 over market are examples that are in 
the study itself. Bretl recommended the ranges could be approved and the grandfathering issue 
could be dealt with separately. He suggested a special quick HR meeting prior to the October 9 
county board meeting to recommend the pay ranges that will be included in the 2013 budget. 
He additionally recommended holding a special HR meeting to take action regarding the rules 
that will apply to how positions move through the pay ranges. November 5,2012 was suggested 
for the meeting date. 

Discussion and possible action regarding early implementation ofthe in-house poolfor 
Transportation Aides at Lakeland Health Care Center (enclosure 8c). Bernie Janiszewski 
explained. In-house staff from the pool would accompany residents to their appointments to 
reduce reliance on outside agencies for staffing. There has been an increase in medical fee 
revenue to cover the cost of implementation. CNAs would accompany residents based on how 
far away the appointment is. Each Friday the following week's needs would be reviewed, on a 
week-by-week basis, to ensure staffmg can meet the transport needs. Each month, the in-house 
pool staff will give their availability for the following month. The target date to implement the 
program is the week ofNovember 5,2012. Vice Chairman Grant and Supervisor Brellenthin 
moved and seconded approval; the motion carried 5 - O. 

Ordinance amending section 15-17 ofthe Code Relating to the Reclassification ofa Physical 
Therapist Assistant Position with the Children with Disabilities Education Board. Now that the 
recruitment process is complete for an assistant position, Tracy Moate wants to move forward 
with recruitment of a physical therapist. Educational requirements for PT assistants are not equal 
to a practicing PT. An assistant can carry out specific tasks needed without adding licensed 
position to deliver services; however, the difficulty with a PT assistant is the Lakeland School is 
now facing the competitive market of the private workplace. Employees are being offered 



Draft Minutes 
September 19, 2012/3:00 p.m. 

Walworth Human Resources Committee 


Page 5 

substantially more per hour in the private sector. PT assistants can't work, legally, 
independently of a physical therapist Moate stated her hope was to recruit a professional PT 
who is looking for part-time work. The previous pool of applicants will be reviewed for interest 
Supervisor Monroe and Vice Chairman Grant moved approval of eliminating the PT 
Assistant position and adding a .50 Physical Therapist position. The motion carried 5 - O. 

Interactive Health Solutions (IHS) annual report ofwell ness screenings. Dale Wilson said the 
screening results dovetails into the committee of the whole discussion regarding an employee 
wellness center. Employees voluntarily choose to participate in the annual screening. With a 
wellness center, the county would no longer need to utilize IHS. Many employees participate in 
the annual screening and feedback has been positive. 1,156 participated in 2012, somewhat 
down, but percentages are relatively stable. Wilson said overall BMI (body mass index) is up , 
something that definitely could be improved. Areas that can be improved are shown on page 2. 
Page 3 shows newly discovered conditions. Wilson explained that metabolic syndrome indicates 
3 of 5 health risk factors are high. Outcomes can be impacted by counseling employees to adopt 
healthier practices. The number of employees with high cholesterol is down from the previous 
year. Over time, our average has improved. 75% of employees are in the low risk category. In 
2011, 12% were high risk. IHS reviewed how Walworth County is doing overall in productivity. 
We're doing well regarding work days' lost Health affects the quality of employees' work. 
This measure looks at county employees only and not their spouses. Employees are incentivized 
to visit the doctor because they can lower their health premium as well as learn ofpreviously 
unknown health conditions and risks. Even high risk, chronic conditions can be positively 
influenced. Vice Chairman Grant asked about a workout room and exercise classes for 
employees. Mr. Wilson said Zumba, a type of aerobic dance, is offered for employees, and the 
Extension Office offers nutrition classes and strength training. Supervisors Brellenthin and 
Monroe moved and seconded placing the report on file; the motion carried 5 - O. 

Correspondence from employee Keith Clayton regarding bereavement ordinance. This was 
referred by the county board. As background, Ms. Hagstrom explained that during bargaining 
negotiations over the years, there had often been a desire by the unions to add new and different 
classifications to what defmes "relationships." Mr. Clayton's letter didn't indicate that although 
he was denied bereavement leave, he was allowed to take a vacation day to attend his partner's 
mother's funeraL Staff indicated that incorporating into the county's ordinances every individual 
circumstance was not advisable. What would the approach be? Offering other benefits to 
domestic partners, until the board first addresses what defines domestic partner, would be 
difficult. Hagstrom indicated that jail staffing rules might not allow a vacation day depending on 
staffing needs. Mr. Clayton was granted a vacation day. Individuals can register domestic 
partnerships as a legal relationship with the County Clerk. Defining what a domestic partner is 
would be a question for the board to discuss and, if desired, codify, Mr. Bretl said. Chairman 
Brandl questioned whether ordinance changes would become an issue that always needed to be 
re-visited to accommodate every individual circumstance. Hagstrom said bereavement time is 
not typically part of an employee's PTO (paid time off) bank. Alternatively, the county could 
give a limited number of bereavement days per year. Unfortunately, that practice would open up 
issues ofpaid FMLA, said Bretl, just like vacation, which would be a problem. He advised 
against that. He said the definition of domestic partner could be addressed if the committee 



Draft Minutes 
September 19,2012/3:00 p.m. 

Walworth County Human Resources Committee 


Page 6 of6 

wanted to pursue that avenue. Vice Chairman Grant moved staff researching the definition 
of domestic partner. The motion was seconded by Supervisor Monroe. Supervisors 
Brandl, Redenius and Brellenthin voted "no," and the motion failed 2 - 3. 

Discussion and possible action regarding County Wellness Center. The committee raised 
several questions for consideration: Staffmg for liability issues? Janitorial services? Building 
maintenance? Co-payor no co-pay for center visits? Location for the wellness center 
convenient for employees? What percentage of employee participation is needed to make the 
center cost effective? Would a county fitness center component take business away from local 
fitness centers? Would the center be located in a new building or a remodeled area? Staffwill 
use these questions as a basis for further research and provide follow-up to the committee. 

Chairman Brandl had no reports or announcements. 

The committee voted 5 - 0, on motion and second by Brellenthin and Grant, to hold a special 
meeting on October 9 before the county board meeting to recommend resolution No. 40-10/12 
Adopting Pay Ranges for Certain Hourly Employees; and, a meeting on November 5 at 3 PM to 
discuss and recommend the rules that will apply to moving current employees to the 2013 pay 
ranges as well as potential amendments to Chapter 15 of the County Code pertaining to alternate 
work schedules and flexible work scheduling for hourly employees, and a follow-up regarding 
the County Wellness Center. 

Chairman Brandl adjourned the meeting on motion and second by Supervisors Monroe and 
Grant. 

Submitted by Suzanne Harrington, County Administrator's Office. Minutes are subject to 
committee approval. 



--

Enclosure 4 

Walworth County Health and Human Services Committee 

MINUTES 


September 19, 2012 Meeting 1:15 p.m. 


Walworth County Board Room 

Government Center - Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


The meeting was called to order by Chair Grant at 1 :23 p.m. 

Roll call- Committee members present included Supervisors Grant, Schaefer, 
Schiefelbein, Monroe and Citizen Representative Wagie-TroemeL Supervisor Schaefer 
and Citizen Representative Seegers excused. A quorum was declared. 

Others present - Linda Seemeyer, Director of Health and Human ServiceslLakeland 
Health Care Center Superintendent; Liz Aldred, Deputy Director Health and Human 
Services; Juliet Young, Health and Human Services; Nancy Russell, County Board 
Supervisor; David Bretl, County Administrator; Lisa Kadlec, Health and Human Services 
Manager; Heather Carlson, Health and Human Services Supervisor, Suzi Hagstrom, 
Human Resources Director, Pat Grove, Health and Human Services Manager; Beth 
Walsh, Public Health Nurse; Jan Olson, Health and Human Services Supervisor 

Public in attendance There was one member of the public in attendance. 

There were no agenda withdrawals. Motion and second made by Citizen Representative 
Wagie-TroemellSupervisor Monroe to approve the agenda. Motion carried 6-0. 

The Health and Human Services minutes from the July 18,2012 meeting were approved 
as amended. Motion and second made by Citizen Representatives Wagie
TroemellPious to approve the minutes. Motion carried 6-0. 

Public Comment - Ms. Seemeyer introduced Mr. Wucherer and stated he will be 
interviewed by the Executive Committee next month and he will hopefully fill the citizen 
representative vacancy in November. Mr. Wucherer told this board he hopes to become a 
member. 

Unfinished business 
Minutesfrom DHHS Public Hearing August 14, 2012 and Minutesfrom 2013-2015 
County Aging Plan Public Hearing August 15, 2012 - Ms. Seemeyer thank the members 
who were able to participate in the hearings. 

Motion and second made by Supervisors SchiefelbeinlMonroe to approve the 
minutes for both public hearings. Motion carried 6-0. 

New Business



Enclosure 4 

2013 Budget Overview - Ms. Seemeyer gave a Power Point presentation on the proposed 
budget for 2013 including additional slides on a handout that was distributed at the 
meeting. 

Supervisor Grant asked if the age of the potential long-term hospitalization consumer. Ms. 
Seemeyer stated it was a young individual. 

Ms. Seemeyer stated that there is current budget plan that involves contracting staff. She 
asked Mr. Bred to explain the issues involved with contracting. Mr. Bretl stated there were 
problems in the past with staff doing identical jobs were one was county and the 
contracted and the differences in pay and benefits. These issues will be dealt with in more 
detail at the Human Resources Committee meeting. 

Ms. Seemeyer discussed a handout regarding tax levy. 

Citizen Representative Wagie-Troemel asked 

Citizen Wagie-Troemel stated she remembers the contract issues from when she was on 
the Human Resources committee and is glad that it is being evaluated. She also stated she 
recommends exit interviews. She supports the additional two positions since it is needed. 
She asked about the State coming for a review? Ms. Seemeyer stated there has been a high 
profile case plus a few other incidents that the State wants to review. The review will 
consist of them interviewing staff and finding system improvements. Citizen 
Representative Wagie-Troemel asked if the State's report could be brought to this 
committee. Ms. Seemeyer stated that the information can be brought to the committee but 
not the actual report since it will include confidential material. 

Citizen Representative Wagie-Troemel stated she likes seeing agency policies and wants 
to be involved in the process. Ms. Seemeyer stated that all significant policies are brought 
before this committee for their review and input. Supervisor Schiefelbein stated he would 
also like to review agency policies but does not need to be involved in procedures. 

Motion and second made by Citizen Representative Wagie-TroemeJJSupervisor 
Brellenthin to support the Human Resource appeals. Motion carried 6-0. 

Supervisor Schiefelbein asked for clarification on funding for these two positions. Ms. 
Seemeyer stated there is funding available in the basic county allocation. 

Request for Proposal for Nutrition Program - Ms. Seemeyer stated there were two bids 
received by the deadline that was earlier today. 

Ms. Russell stated that she feels it is time for a change in vendors. 

Vaccine Policy Change Pat Grove, Public Health Officer; Jan Ellefsen, Public Health 
Supervisor and Beth Walsh, Public Health Nurse discussed the changes in the 
immunization policy. They stated that 1/3 of population will be affected by this change. 



Enclosure 4 

Supervisor Grant asked what the public should do. Ms. Ellefsen stated that they either 
would go to a doctor or pay for the vaccine at a Public Health clinic. State funded vaccines 
cannot be used for unqualified people. Public Health worked on getting the word out to 
the public in early August before the deadline. 

Supervisor Grant stated he is concerned for children. 

Supervisor Monroe asked how is it verified if a consumer has insurance or not. At this 
time all we can do is ask. 

Ms. Grove stated that due to the major statevvide whooping cough outbreak there has been 
an addendum as long as there is an outbreak. Children can receive the vaccine for 
whooping cough and the flu regardless of insurance. They will not be able to receive the 
chicken pox vaccine. 

Supervisor Schiefelbein asked if additional funding is needed. Ms. Seemeyer stated that is 
an option. Supervisor Schiefelbein asked what is the cost for the vaccines. Ms. Ellefsen 
stated that there is $13,000 available for vaccines for October through December and 
$30,000 requested in the 2013 budget for vaccines. Supervisor Schiefelbein asked the 
number of people affected. Ms. Ellefsen stated that Public Health gave 304 children with 
insurance vaccinations. Under the new policy change they can only vaccinate child with 
no Insurance. 

Supervisor Grant asked about waivers from the State. The State will waive this policy 
change if an outbreak is declared. 

Ms. Aldred stated the question for this committee is if they want Public Health to use levy 
to cover what was paid for by the Federal government. Supervisor Grant stated this issue 
should be re-evaluated in Mayor June of next year. Citizen Representative Wagie
Troemel agreed stating to keep the policy as it is now. 

Supervisor Russell asked if this policy affects children or adults. Ms. Ellefsen stated it 
affects both. 

Supervisor Schiefelbein asked how many cases of whooping cough in Walworth County. 
Ms. Grove stated there are 200 confinned cases and 300 cases were screened. Supervisor 
Grant asked how many cases statewide. Ms. Grove stated over 2,000. Supervisor Grant 
asked if the majority were in southeastern Wisconsin. Ms. Grove stated yes. 

Community Support and Targeted Case Management Presentation Ms. Seemeyer 
introduced Lisa Kadlec, Community Support Manager who went over Power Point 
presentation on the Community Support Program. 



Enclosure 4 

Supervisor Schiefelbein asked who selects committee members for the Coordination 
Committee. Ms. Kadlec stated that committee membership is encouraged to include 
members outside Health and Human Services. 

Supervisor Grant asked if the committee membership appeals are advertised in the paper. 
Ms. Kadlec stated it was for the 2009 kickoff event. There are requirements for the 
committee. There is no cap on the number of members although 1/3 of the membership 
needs to be consumers. The committee members decide who will be on the committee. 

Ms. Seemeyer added that State auditors for this program have identified Walworth County 
as one ofthe best in the State and refer other counties to WCDHHS as a model. 

Reports 
2nd Annual Caregiver Conference - Ms. Seemeyer stated this item is on the agenda for this 
committee's information. It is sponsored by the Walworth County Aging Network 
(WCAN). 

Citizen Representative Wagie-Troemel is interested but is unable to attend. Ms. Seemeyer 
stated she will check to see if there is information that can be forwarded to her. 

New Public Health Informational Brochures - Ms. Grove discussed brochures included in 
the packet. Supervisor Schiefelbein asked about some of the wording on the CHIPPS 
brochure regarding the Open Arms Free Clinic. Ms. Grove and, Ms. Seemeyer stated they 
would revise the brochure. 

Ms. Seemeyer also mentioned that Mr. Bretl asked her to look into other free clinics. The 
models of these free clinics cover a wide range. She will report back to the committee next 
month with more information. 

Role ofHuman Services StaffDuring Presentence Investigation Policy - Mr. Bretl stated 
he is still reviewing this policy. He explained the policy is being reviewed due to 
recommendations from the Department of Corrections. This item will be on the next 
agenda so more research can be done. 

Supervisor Grant feels presentence recommendations should go through Ms. Seemeyer 
and Supervisor Schiefelbein concurred. Citizen Representative Wagie-Troemel stated she 
is glad this is being reviewed since situations are getting worse. 

Supervisor Schiefelbein asked if there was a best practices manual and would welcome a 
policy and Supervisor Monroe agreed. 

Correspondence - Ms. Seemeyer handed out a copy of a memo to State and local 
representatives regarding support for an audit of LogistiCare. 

Citizen Representative Wagie-Troemel encouraged everyone to read the articles in 
Milwaukee Journal-Sentinel regarding LogistiCare. 



Enclosure 4 

Motion and second made by Citizen Representatives Wagie-TroemellPious for this 
committee's support for an audit of LogistiCare. Motion carried 6-0. 

Announcements Citizen Representative Wagie-Troemel encouraged this committee to 
attend the Walworth County Alliance for Children (WCAC) groundbreaking ceremony on 
September 26th 

. 

Next Meeting Date The next meeting is scheduled for October 17,2012 at tentatively 
1:15 p.m. following the Lakeland Health Care Board ofTrustees meeting. 

Adjournment - On motion and second by Supervisor Monroe/Citizen Representative 
Wagie-Troemel Chair Grant adjourned the Health and Human Services meeting at 
approximately 3:07 p.m. Motion carried 6-0. 

Submitted by Juliet Young, Recorder. Meeting minutes are not considered final until 
approved by the committee at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 



Enclosure 1 

Walworth County Lakeland Health Care Center Board of Trustees 

MINUTES 


September 19,2012 Meeting-1:00 p.m. 


Walworth County Meeting Room 111 
Government Center - Elkhorn, Wisconsin 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Grant at 1 :01 p.m. 

Roll call Committee members present included Supervisors Grant, Schiefelbein, 
Brellenthin and Monroe. Supervisor Schaefer was excused. A quorum was declared. 

Others present Linda Seemeyer, Director of Health and Human ServiceslLakeland 
Health Care Center Superintendent; Liz Aldred, Deputy Director Health and Human 
Services; Juliet Young, Health and Human Services; Bernadette Janiszewski, Lakeland 
Health Care Center Administrator; Nancy Russell, County Board Supervisor; Sandy 
Wagie-Troemel, Health and Human Services Board Citizen Representative; Ella Eva 
Pious, Health and Human Services Board Citizen Representative; David Bretl, County 
Administrator; Lisa Kadlec, Health and Human Services Manager; Heather Carlson, 
Health and Human Services Supervisor, Suzi Hagstrom, Human Resources Director, Pat 
Grove, Health and Human Services Manager; Beth Walsh, Public Health Nurse; Jan 
Olson, Health and Human Services Supervisor 

Public in attendance - There was one member of the public in attendance. 

There were no agenda withdrawals. Supervisor(s) lMonroelBrellenthin moved to 
approve the agenda. Motion carried 4-0. 

The Lakeland Health Care Center Board ofTrustees committee minutes of the July 18, 
2012. Motion and second made by Supervisor(s) BrellenthinlSchiefelbein to approve 
the- minutes. Motion carried 4-0. 

Public Comment - There were no comments from the public. 

Unfinished Business - There were no items of unfinished business. 

New Business 

2013 Budget Overview including Early Implementation ofTransportation Aide Pool Ms. 

Janiszewski reviewed the budget as outlined in the enclosure. 


Supervisor Grant asked when most of the operation changes would take place. Ms. 
Janiszewski stated that most will occur in 2013. 

Supervisor Schiefelbein asked for a definition of this committee's role regarding long 
range planning. Ms. Janiszewski gave background information on Lakeland Health Care 
Center's strategic planning and future goals. Mr. Bretl expanded on Ms. Janiszewski's 



Enclosure I 

comments stating that the role of this board is advisory on policies for Lakeland Health 
Care Center and that Ms. Janiszewski is planning for future potential revenues. Mr. Bretl 
encouraged this board to tour the facility in order to have a better understanding of the 
policies they will be advising on. 

Supervisor Monroe asked about the long range plan. Ms. Janiszewski stated it was a 10 
year strategic plan. 

Supervisor Grant suggested a tour of the Lakeland Health Care Center at noon before the 
October meeting. 

Supervisor Russell asked for information regarding tax appropriation and payer source 
mix for other County owned nursing homes. Ms. Janiszewski stated she would gather that 
information for the October meeting. 

Motion and second made by Supervisor(s) Monroe/Schiefelbein to recommend the 
transportation aide pool. Motion carried 4-0. 

Reports 
LHCC Administrator's Report and Financial Update - Ms. Janiszewski distributed the 
August 2012 income statement. Ms. Janiszewski stated that the budget on target so far for 
the year. 

Correspondence - There were no correspondence. 

Announcements 
GolfOuting- Supervisor Grant invited committee members to attend the annual golf 
outing in October. 

Next Meeting Date The next meeting is tentatively scheduled for October 17,2012 at 
1 :00 p.m. The committee will meet at the Government Center at noon and transportation 
will be provided to and from the facility. 

Adjournment On motion and second by Supervisor(s) Supervisor 
Monroe/Schiefelbein, Chair Grant adjourned the Lakeland Health Care Center 
Board of Trustees meeting at approximately 1:23PM. Motion carried 4-0. 
Submitted by Juliet Young, Recorder. Meeting minutes are not considered final until 
approved by the committee at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 



Walworth County Board Executive Committee 

Monday, September 17,2012 


10:00 AM 

Walworth County Government Center 


100 W. Walworth St., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 

DRAFTMINUTES 

Chainnan Weber called the meeting to order. 

Committee members in attendance included Chainnan Weber, Vice Chainnan Kilkenny and 
Supervisors Russell and Schiefelbein. Supervisor Brandl had not yet arrived. A quorum was 
declared. 

Others in attendance included Lt. John Ennis, Sheriff's Office; Kathy Du Bois, Treasurer; Val 
Etzel, Treasurer's Office; John Orr, Infonnation Systems Director; Supervisor Tim Brellenthin; 
Dave Graves, Sheriff; Connie Woolever, Register of Deeds; Kevin Brunner, Director Central 
Services; Capt. Dave Gerber, Sheriffs Office; Nicole Andersen, Deputy County Administrator 
Finance; and, Dave Bretl, County Administrator. 

There were no agenda withdrawals. Agenda approval was moved and seconded by Supervisors 
Russell and Schiefelbein and carried 4 - O. 

(Supervisor Brandl arrived.) 

Approval of the July 16, 2012 executive committee minutes was moved by Supervisor Russell, 
who had a question. She referred to page 7 of the minutes and said she thought Sheriff Graves 
had said they would not open the range on Sundays. Vice Chainnan Kilkenny said he recalled 
the sheriff said he was agreeable to looking into restricting the hours ofoperation. Mr. Bred said 
the meeting video could be reviewed for clarification. The minutes were approved by a 5 - 0 
vote, subject to review of the discussion on the July 16 video. 

There was no comment during public comment period. 

Ongoing/unfinished business 
Ordinance relating to county board citizen appointments to library boards. Mr. Bretl said 
municipalities operate the libraries, which town residents also use. The county levies taxes to 
support the libraries. Taxpayers that are levied library use taxes by their municipality are 
exempted from a county library use levy; they are not doubled-taxed. In the Wisconsin Statutes 
that establish library boards, there is a provision for representation on library boards that permits 
a certain number of members to be appointed by counties, to ensure representation of county 
residents in all areas, including cities, towns and villages. Walworth County has had a mixed 
practice over the years of how it made appointments to the library boards. The City of Delavan 
brought to our attention the ability to appoint additional representatives. Mr. Bretl infonned the 
libraries in Walworth County that an ordinance amendment was being contemplated pertaining 
to library board appointments, and he received feedback from the libraries. The Town ofTroy 
provided positive feedback. Lake Geneva Mayor Connors shared their appointment list and said 



DRAFT MINUTES - Walworth County Executive Committee 
Monday, September 17, 2012 at 10:00 AM 

Page 2 of5 

he is not opposed to an additional county appointment. None of the libraries had a problem with 
the county making the additional appointments it is entitled to make. Adoption of the ordinance 
will codify how appointments are made. Mr. Bred clarified that anybody who resides in the 
county can serve on any library board; residency in the municipality served by a library board is 
not a requirement. Bret! was asked if a county board member would be eligible to serve on a 
library board. He said appointing a supervisor as county representative would be appropriate 
considering the level of funding support the county provides to the libraries. He indicated he 
could solicit interest among board members. Supervisor Russell made a suggestion to modify 
section (b) of the ordinance to include language regarding encouraging input from local library 
boards concerning appointments. Vice Chair Kilkenny said he thought that could present 
potential conflicts if a board was interested in retaining a certain membership versus opening to 
appointments that represented all library users. He said he was appreciative of the suggestions 
the library boards had submitted regarding the ordinance. Supervisor Russell withdrew her 
suggestion but recommended adding section ( c), pertaining to annually updating the ordinance to 
reflect the number of appointments the county is entitled to make under Sec. 43.60 Wis. Stats. 
The county receives a state report for the entire library district that would be used to update the 
section. Supervisor Schiefelbein said he had spoken with two Elkhorn library board members. 
A city council member is on the library board as a non-voting member. Mr. Bret! said county 
appointees would be voting members. Supervisor Russell moved approval of the ordinance, 
with the addition of section (c) pertaining to annual review of the ordinance and number of 
appointments the county is entitled to make, ensuring compliance with library district data 
and Wisconsin Statutes. Schiefelbein seconded the motion, which carried 5 - O. 

Appointments 
Walworth County Board ofAdjustment - second alternate position. County Administrator Bretl 
had provided an application from Franklin Jones and recommended the committee interview 
him. Mr. Bret! also suggested consideration of acknowledging Roy Lightfield in the future for 
his many years of service. Mr. Lightfield's term in the second alternate position ended on June 
30. Supervisors Kilkenny and Brandl moved and seconded interviewing Mr. Brett's 
nominee on October 9, prior to the County Board meeting, and including the nomination 
on the October board agenda for approval. The motion carried 5 - O. 

Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) County Administrator's nominations. The 
committee annually recommends the LEPC appointments pursuant to federal requirements. 
Every county has an LEPC. The county board certifies the list that is submitted by the LEPC 
and Emergency Management Director. Central Services Director Kevin Brunner is being 
nominated to represent highway operations and Maureen Vander Sanden will represent the 
media. Supervisors Russell and Brandl moved and seconded recommending county board 
appointment of all on the list, with the spelling of Senator Kedzie's name corrected. The 
motion carried 5 O. 

Walworth County Metropolitan (WaICoMet) Sewerage District Commission. The application 
deadline was September 12. Mr. Bretl indicated he had not had an opportunity to review all four 
applications received. He plans to nominate a candidate for the committee to interview in 
October. 



DRAFT MINUTES - Walworth County Executive Committee 
Monday, September 17,2012 at 10:00 AM 

Page 3 of5 

Walworth County Worliforce Development Board. Russell/Schiefelbein moved and seconded 
county board appointment of Grace Eckland to the board; the motion carried 5 - O. 

Consent items. The expense claims listed below were approved 5 - 0 on motion and second by 
Supervisors Kilkenny and Brandl. 

a) Expense reimbursement claim of Richard Kuhnke, WRR TC representative, in the amount 
of$122.l5 

b) Mileage reimbursement claims of Supervisor Stacey (3) totaling $56.61 

New business 
Wisconsin DOA correspondence regarding Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
Emergency Assistance Program Contract #EAP 08-13. The DOA provided a list of items the 
county and Town of Sugar Creek need to submit to close out the grant. Supervisor Russell 
explained that she had received the correspondence as board chair and said she was satisfied with 
how the grant has been handled by Ennis. Supervisors Kilkenny and Russell moved and 
seconded placing the correspondence on file. The motion carried 5 - o. 

Emergency Management HMPG plan update - Emergency Management Director John Ennis. 
The plan is a countywide review and update of emergency preparedness. Ennis said the two-year 
plan must be updated and in place by June 2014. State officials told Ennis to allow eighteen 
months for plan update preparation. There is currently funding available. Towns, cities and 
villages have agreed to participate. The county match will be 12.5% or $2,200. The match can 
be in county staff time or time spent by towns or cities in HMPG-related activities. Committee 
approval is required to accept the grant funding, which is ready to be disbursed. The original 
HMPG plan was submitted in 2009. Ennis will work with purchasing to issue a request for bids 
from vendors to work on the update. He said potential major disaster issues are reviewed; if 
issues are identified, remediation comes from separate funding. Approval to accept grant 
funding was moved and seconded by Supervisors Kilkenny and Russell; the motion carried 
5-0. 

Resolution authorizing the County to deed a property located at 125 N Wakely Street in 
Whitewater, Wisconsin to the City of Whitewater. Kevin Williams began the process, a couple of 
years ago, of acquiring the property in Whitewater which was one that had been damaged during 
the 2008 floods affecting many Wisconsin counties. Walworth County eventually purchased the 
property, and the on-site home was demolished and the site was cleared. The City of Whitewater 
agreed to redevelop the property. Bretl said the city is not permitted to make money on the 
proposition. The county board must adopt a resolution to quit claim the deed to the property to 
the City. Approval to recommend the county board quit claim the deed to the property was 
moved and seconded by Supervisors Kilkenny and Brandl; the motion carried 5 - o. 

Resolution authorizing the appropriate county staffto execute the Southern Housing Consortium 
CDBG Housing Consortium Agreement. If the county wants communities to be able to 
participate in housing assistance under the new model, we must authorize the agreement. 
Columbia County will be the lead county and fiscal agent. Bretl said he thought the housing 
assistance process was working well before but this new requirement is pursuant to the state's 
new paradigm. He recommended approval of executing the agreement. Kilkenny asked if the 

http:of$122.l5


DRAFT MINUTES - Walworth County Executive Committee 
Monday, September 17,2012 at 10:00 AM 

Page 4 of5 

southern consortium counties were contiguous and who the county's representative will be. The 
counties are not contiguous. One option would be to have a municipal representative. It could 
be argued that could constitute a potential conflict where housing assistance grant funding is 
concerned. Josh Clements, CNRED Agent for the county, has been attending the consortium 
meetings since early summer. Supervisor Kilkenny thought Josh might be a good county 
representative. Kilkenny moved approval of the resolution. Schiefelbein seconded and the 
motion carried 5 - O. Mr. Bretl's nomination of the county representative to serve on the 
CDBG Housing Consortium will be included on next executive committee agenda. 

Wisconsin Department ofAdministration Preliminary Estimate ofJanuary 1, 2012 Walworth 
County Population. Mr. Bred indicated that unless the DOA's figures can be disproved, there is 
no basis for a challenge. Supervisors Russell and Brandl moved and seconded placing the 
DOA estimate on file. The motion 5 O. Vice Chair Kilkenny commented about the figures 
for the City of Whitewater. Kevin Brunner said students at UW -Whitewater are counted in the 
census, and enrollment is high right now, at nearly 12,000. There have also been approximately 
150 new housing units added in Whitewater. 

Correspondencefrom Wisconsin River Rail Transit Commission regarding the WRRTC 2013
2015 Biennial Budget. Mr. Bretl said WRRTC's budget request has been incorporated into the 
county budget. The county has three representatives on the WRRTC board. Supervisors 
Brandl and Russell moved and seconded placing the correspondence on file; the motion 
carried 5 - O. 

Ordinance relating to ProPhoenix Records Management System (RMS) operation and county 
agreements with municipalities. Mr. Bred indicated the committee recommended cost recovery 
and cost sharing for continued maintenance of the RMS. Sheriff Graves asked for input 
regarding Linn Township and the city of Elkhorn's awareness of the county's intent to recover 
costs of system maintenance. Linn and Elkhorn know about this. Capt. Gerber said the service 
level agreement between the county and the Town of Linn has been signed. There is a verbal 
agreement between the Sheriff, Undersheriff and police chiefs that there would be cost sharing in 
the future. Orr said cost sharing for maintenance will be small. Equipment utilization will need 
to be reviewed because that will vary greatly from municipality to municipality and for towns. 
Chairman Weber asked if there were many municipalities interested in participating in the RMS. 
Sheriff Graves said county staff is not actively "marketing" the RMS but believes as others 
become aware of its use, e.g., by Linn and Elkhorn, more will come on board. The sheriff hosted 
a meeting to inform the local departments. All municipalities and towns have been made aware. 
Lake Geneva, for example, already has ProPhoenix RMS but is not in a data sharing arrangement 
with the county. John Orr stated the impact will need to be analyzed as to how much disk 
storage and system utilization there is from town to town, etc. The method of calculating needs 
to be uniform and equitable. Sheriff Graves doesn't support providing the service unless there is 
cost sharing. What effect will a user that decides not to stay on board have on the county? What 
will be the length of commitment? (Schiefelbein). A client license must be purchased to use 
ProPhoenix. The county also has a license to use ProPhoenix RMS. Hardware, software and 
maintenance costs are what we are trying to recuperate. Ifa city decides to opt out, it would lose 
the investment it had already made. Orr said he didn't envision an issue in this regard. We did 
not budget for any revenues from the municipalities for cost sharing in the 2013 county budget. 



DRAFT MINUTES - Walworth County Executive Committee 
Monday, September 17, 2012 at 10:00 AM 

Page 5 of5 

We host GIS services at $250/month, which includes labor time recovery and fee for data input. 
2014 revenue collection for cost sharing recovery was recommended by Bretl, Graves and Orr. 
Billing to the towns, cities and villages next year and accounting for the revenue in the 2014 
budget was recommended by Supervisors Kilkenny and Schiefelbein and carried 5 O. 

Chairman Weber had no reports or announcements. 

October 15,2012 at 10 AM was confirmed as the next regular business meeting date. The 
committee will meeting specially on October 9, prior to County Board, to interview County 
Administrator Bretl's BOA candidate. 

Claims and litigation. Supervisors Kilkenny and Brandl moved and seconded convening in 
closed session pursuant to the exemption contained in Section 19.85 (1) (g) of the Wisconsin 
Statutes, "conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or 
written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it 
is or is likely to become involved," relative to the items listed below. All members voted "aye" 
to convene in closed session. 

a) 	 Travis Jack, Plaintiffvs. Chaim Dovid Sachs, Asset Acceptance LLC, State of Wisconsin 
and Walworth County, Defendants 

b) Claim for Damage to Boat - Robert Sivek and Progressive Universal Insurance CO. VS. 

Walworth County Sheriffs Department 
c) 	 Notice ofClaim Jeffrey S. Akright, Claimant vs. Sheriff David Graves, Respondent 
d) Correspondence from Town of Delavan regarding Assessment Trial- WIMP No. 

210020201 
e) 	 Potential Claim against Fannie Mae & Freddie Mac in regard to real estate transfer taxes. 

The committee reconvened in open session on motion and second by Vice Chairman Kilkenny 
and Supervisor Brandl. 

• 	 Supervisors Kilkenny and Russell moved and seconded no action on items a and d. The 
motion carried 5 - O. 

• 	 Supervisors Schiefelbein and Brandl moved and seconded denying the claims of Robert 
Sivek and Jeffrey Akright and serving notice of disallowance on the claimants. The 
motion carried 5 - O. 

• 	 Supervisors Brandl and Russell moved and seconded authorizing the Register of Deeds to 
join lawsuit in regard to the potential claim against Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac 
concerning real estate transfer taxes. The motion carried 5 - O. 

Chairman Weber adjourned the meeting at 11 :40 AM on motion and second by Supervisors 
Brandl and RusselL 
Submitted by Suzanne Harrington, Walworth County Administrator's Office. Minutes are 
subject to approval by the Executive Committee. 



Walworth County Agriculture and Extension Education Committee 

MEETING MINUTES 


Monday, September 17, 2012---1:00PM 

Walworth County Government Center Room 114 


100 West Walworth Street 

Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


WISCONSIN 

Supervisor Daniel Kilkenny, Chairman 
Supervisor Tim Schiefelbein, Vice-Chairman 

Supervisor Nancy Russell Sue Bellman Pam Knorr 
Michael Krejci Mary Kaye Merwin Kathleen Papcke 

(alternate citizen members: Kathy Baumeister, Bob Handel) 

DRAFT***DRAFT***DRAFT 

Committee Chairman Daniel Kilkenny called the meeting to order at 1 :00 p.m. 

Committee Members Present 

Roll call was conducted and the following committee members were present: Committee Chairman 

Daniel Kilkenny, Supervisor Tim Schiefelbein, Supervisor Nancy Russell, FSAIAG Representative Sue 

Bellman, School Representative Pam Knorr, Michael Krejci, Mary Kaye Merwin, and Kathleen Papcke. 

No one was absent from the meeting. There was a quorum. 


County Staff Present 

UW-Extension Interim Department Head Jenny Wehmeier and UW-Extension Economic Development 

Educator Joshua Clements were present. 


Amendments or Withdrawals from Agenda 

There were no amendments or withdrawals from the agenda. Kilkenny asked for a motion to approve the 

agenda, which was made by Russell and seconded by Papcke. The motion passed 8-0. 


Approval of Minutes 

Chairman Kilkenny asked for additions or corrections to the minutes from the May 14,2012 meeting. No 

corrections were made. Kilkenny asked for a motion to approve the minutes, which was made by Krejci 

and seconded by Schiefelbein. The motion passed 8-0. 


Public Comments 

There were no public comments. 


Unfinished Business 

There was no unfinished business. 


New Business 

UW-Extension Board of Regents - Walworth County 133 Contract (enclosure 2) 

Wehmeier explained that the 133 Contract is the standard contract the state issues with the county 
annually. The board will need to sign the contract, and it will then move on to purchasing and Mr. 
Bretl. The only difference this year is that Clements' salary is changing. The last three years, the 
county has paid 100% of his salary and benefits. This year, the state is going to pay 30% and the 
county 70%. Russell moved to approve the contract. Krejci seconded the motion. The motion was 
carried 8-0. 



Reports 
Family Living Educator Jenny Wehmeier: Get Moving! Program Summary 

Wehmeier explained the information enclosed in the packet regarding the Get Moving! program 
she had spoken about this spring. She is thrilled with the participation in the program and wanted 
to provide a summary of the program so the committee can get a feeling ofhow it turned out. Last 
meeting, Wehmeier had an opportunity to apply for a grant to cover expenses of the Get Moving! 
program. Unfortunately, Walworth County did not receive one of the grants. We may be able to 
apply for other grants as the second round of applications is coming. Against us were the urban 
communities surrounding us that demonstrated more of a need. The Get Moving! program is a 
collaboration between Mercy Health System, the Family Resource Coalition, and UW-Extension, 
specifically the Family Living program. It was an opportunity for families and individuals to get 
out and get engaged in municipal and county parks. Participants went for walks, participated in 
educational programs, and basically were given the opportunity to get outside and get moving 
more. There were just shy of40 different programs. The biggest barrier this summer was the heat. 
688 people registered for the program. Mercy built a website, getmovingwalworthcounty.com, 
which gave people the chance to register online or in the office. A spreadsheet was created to 
maintain how many people signed up from each location in Walworth County, where people 
attended programs, and how often they participated. 9 families came to more than 10 events. 
Overall, there was great participation. Mercy sponsored most of the program; they donated t
shirts, water bottles, and pedometers. The final event was at the Walworth County Fair, with 
walks scheduled hourly. 28 people signed up that day. We are still pulling together data to see the 
impact of the program. It is definitely a program we want to continue. We will be seeking funding 
from other sources. This year, one of our goals was for Mrs. Obama to come, but was a little 
busy. Next year, we plan on going for other local celebrities, supervisors, etc. We were able to 
provide a low cost of $1 for children and $3 for adults. The person that participated the most 
attended 21 of the events. It was marketed primarily through the various Parks and Recreation 
programs. Some sites didn't work out as well others, but now we know for next year. 

UW-Extension outreach and educational events (enclosure 4) 
A flyer for our Emerald Ash Borer Forum is included in packet. We are trying to get the word out 
so people understand what they're looking for. The forum will be held in Whitewater. 

Rock River Reflections (enclosure 5) 
For your information. 

Wehmeier explained that our office is busy planning a Centennial Celebration. We will get the publicity 

out this week. It will be held on October 17. We are celebrating the 100 year anniversary of Extension 

services in Wisconsin. All educators from our office are holding classes throughout Walworth County 

during the day. There will be a Back-to4-H night, Strong Women programs, a canning class, an Emerald 

Ash Borer Program, and more. The flyer will be out by the end of the week. We would appreciate if any 

of the board members could show up. We will mail the information and post it on our website. 


Chairperson's Report 

Committee Chairman Kilkenny had no report. 


Announcements 

Merwin asked for the minutes of the Public Hearing from May to be on the next agenda for some follow 

up. She is very concerned with the depositions made by people showing emotional conflict within the 4-H 

program. She would like to know how it was addressed. 


http:getmovingwalworthcounty.com


Set/confirm next meeting date and time 
Monday, November 19,2012 at 1:00 p.m. in Room 114 at the Government Center. 

Wehmeier explained that the Extension office has a staff team building event that day and is 
wondering if it would be possible to move the AEE meeting to another day. It was the only day 
all our staff was available. Kilkenny recommend talking to Parks about swapping their October 
15 date so people won't have to juggle schedules. 

Adjournment 
Chairman Kilkenny asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting, which was made by Schiefelbein and 
seconded by Russell. The motion passed 8-0. The meeting was adjourned at 1 :23 p.m. 

Submitted by Brittany Wierzbach, recording secretary. Minutes are in draft form until approved by the 
AEE Committee at the November 5,2012 meeting. 



County Board Executive Committee 

September 6, 2012 - 4:30 PM 


County Board Room 114 

Walworth County Government Center 


100 W. Walworth St., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


Dave Weber, Chairman Dan Kilkenny, Vice Chairman 
Supervisor Rich Brandl Supervisor Nancy Russell Supervisor Tim Schiefelbein 

Draft Minutes 

Chairman Weber called the meeting to order at approximately 4:33 p.m. 

A quorum of members was in attendance, including Chairman Weber, Vice Chairman 
Kilkenny and Supervisors Brandl, Russell and Schiefelbein. 

Others in attendance included County Board Supervisors Tim Brellenthin, Carl Redenius, 
Jerry Grant, Ken Monroe and Rick Stacey; John Orr, Information Technology Director; 
Nicole Andersen, Deputy County Administrator Finance; Kevin Brunner, Director 
Central Services; Maureen Vander Sanden, Elkhorn Independent Reporter; David 
Thompson, Deputy HHS Director; Tracy Moate, Director of Special Education; Josh 
Clements, CNRED Agent; Stacie Johnson, Budget Analyst; Bernie Janiszewski, LHCC 
Administrator; Chris Duffy, Representative Payee Coordinator; and, Dave Bretl, County 
Administrator. 

With no withdrawals or changes, the agenda was approved 5 0 on motion and second 
by Supervisors Brandl and Russell. 

There was no public comment. 

Ordinance Creating Division 6 of Article II, Chapter 2 of the Walworth County Code of 
Ordinances Relating to Walworth County Metropolitan Sewerage District. Chairperson 
Weber pointed out that this amendment does allow for a board member to be considered 
for a position on the WalCoMet board. Vice Chairperson Kilkenny stated that he 
discussed this issue with the attorney for WaiCoMet. Vice Chairperson Kilkenny was 
concerned with a potential conflict of interest. He felt that the ordinance made it seem 
like the appointment of an elected official was the county's preference. He suggested 
deleting the last sentence of paragraph b. Bred pointed out that even if that sentence is 
removed, there is no prohibition from an elected official being appointed. He added that 
elected official did not necessarily mean a county board supervisor. It could also refer to 
a senator, for example. Vice Chairperson Kilkenny reiterated that he was concerned 
about a conflict of interest. 

Vice Chairperson Kilkenny moved and Supervisor Schiefelbein seconded approval 
of the ordinance amendment with the removal of the last sentence in paragraph b. 
The motion carried 4 - 1. (Supervisor Russell opposed). 

Resolution Establishing a Committee of the Whole Date for a Presentation by the Finance 
Department Regarding the Status of the County's Health Fund and Wellness Center 
Option. Bretl stated that this item had been discussed during the budget presentation. 



AGENDA - Walworth County Executive Committee 
Thursday, September 6,2012 at 4:30 PM 

Page 2 of2 

Supervisor Brandl moved and Vice Chairperson Kilkenny seconded approval of a 
September 19th Committee of the Whole. The motion carried 5 - O. 

Recommendation concerning award of bid for Workforce Investment Act (WIA) 
services, including Adult and Dislocated Worker Case Management, Youth Services, Out 
of School Youth Leadership and Business Services Coordination. This topic has been 
discussed at numerous meetings. Bretl stated that the county has dealt with the Kaiser 
Group and Marilyn Putz for many years, and they have done a great job with the 
program. The services that Kaiser had provided were broken out into different 
categories, and the county went out for competitive bid. Several proposals were received 
and evaluated. Bretl distributed the bid recommendation. Clements explained that he 
worked with the purchasing department, the State and Kaiser group to develop the RFP. 
Clements stated that there was no satisfactory bid for the Out of School Youth & High 
School Completion Program, so that would go back to Kaiser. The recommendation for 
the Business Services Coordination was to award the bid to WCEDA. WCEDA has been 
providing many of those services but not getting paid. With regard to the Out of School 
Youth & High School Completion Program, Kaiser is presently providing those services 
and doing a satisfactory job. The evaluation committee was concerned with the oversight 
of the AFL-CIO facilities. Kaiser has on-site supervision of its case managers. Clements 
added that pricing was only 10-15% of the total grade that the vendors received. Bretl 
added that while the county tries to pick the lowest bidder, there is an evaluation process, 
and management was a factor in this case. Clements pointed out that Kaiser provides 
many training programs on-site giving them a slight edge. In terms of pricing, it is a 
fixed dollar amount coming from the state, so the first year is the same for each vendor. 
The pricing difference is misleading for future years because we don't know what the 
amount in future years will be. 

Vice Chairperson Kilkenny moved and Supervisor Russell seconded approval of the 
bid award as recommended. The motion carried 5 - O. 

Chairman Weber had no reports or announcements. 

The next regular committee meeting was confirmed for September 17 at lOAM. 

Chairman Weber adjourned the meeting at approximately 4:56 PM on motion and second 
by Supervisors Brandl and Russell. 

Submitted by Tammy Werblow, County Administrator's Office. Minutes are subject to 
executive committee approval. 



Walworth County Human Resources Committee 

MINUTES 


September 6,2012 - 4:45 p.m. 


County Board Room 114 Government Center 

Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


The meeting was called to order at approximately 4:58 p.m. by Chairperson Brandl. 

Roll call- In attendance were Chairperson Brandl, Vice Chairperson Grant, Supervisors 
Redenius, Monroe and Brellenthin. A quorum was declared. 

Others present - Supervisors Nancy Russell, Joe Schaefer, Rick Stacey; David Bretl, County 
Administrator; Suzi Hagstrom, LaborlEmployee Relations Director; Nicki Andersen, Deputy 
County Administrator - Finance; Val Etzel, Accounting Assistant; Peggy Watson, 
OfficelPurchasing Manager; Kurt Picknell, Undersheriff; David Thompson, Deputy HHS 
Director; David Graves, Sheriff; Chris Jordan, Veterans Services; Kathy Du Bois, Treasurer; 
Michael Cotter, LURM Director; Connie Woolever, Register of Deeds; Nicole Hill, Deputy 
County Clerk; Kim Bushey, County Clerk; Amanda Lagle, Business Office Supervisor; Kevin 
Brunner, Director - Central Services; John Orr, Information Technology Director; Tracy Moate, 
Director of Special Education; Josh Clements, CNRED Agent; Stacie Johnson, Budget Analyst; 
Bernie Janiszewski, LHCC Administrator; Chris Duffy, Representative Payee Coordinator; 
Maureen Vander Sanden, Elkhorn Independent Reporter. 

Approval of the agenda was moved and seconded by Vice Chairperson Grant and Supervisor 
Brellenthin, with no withdrawals, and carried 5 O. 

Public comment period none 

Ordinance No. 738-09/12 Amending Section 15-324 of the Walworth County Code of 
Ordinances Relating to Performance Based Pay. Hagstrom distributed an amendment. Bretl 
stated that he hopes to expand the performance based pay plan in the future. One of the 
immediate goals is to try and speed up the movement of employees through the pay plan. One of 
the criticisms of the old plan was that it took employees too long to get through it. Hagstrom 
explained the proposed amendment she had distributed. This amendment, which would go under 
7a, would address very specific situations where a department head wanted equity for two 
employees in the same classification who were receiving different pay. If, for example, the 
department head wanted to establish equity for an employee in quartile one and an employee in 
quartile two, the county administrator could authorize the department head to give the person in 
quartile 2 a lower increase to establish equity. Supervisor Russell suggested striking the 
endpoint for an average performer on page 2. She felt that an employee who is an average 
performer should not go past the midpoint. For a solid contributor, Supervisor Russell suggested 
making the endpoint seven years instead of six. Supervisor Russell did not agree with the 
addition of (9)(b). She feels that the committee's job is to set policy, not to get involved in 
individual performance reviews. Bretl said that in terms of average employees, they could stop 



Walworth County Human Resources Committee 
September 6,201214:45 p.m. 
Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT 

at midpoint, and he was okay with making the endpoint for solid contributors seven years. While 
he had built in an appeal with this draft amendment, he was agreeable to his decision being 
binding and final. Hagstrom pointed out a small change that needed to be made in line 1 on page 
2. It should read high level performer instead of high level contributor. Vice Chairperson 
Grant and Supervisor Monroe moved and seconded passage of the plan. The motion 
carried 5 - O. Vice Chairperson Grant and Supervisor Brellenthin moved and seconded 
changing high level contributor to high level performer in the draft ordinance. The motion 
carried 5 - O. Vice Chairperson Grant and Supervisor Monroe moved and seconded 
removing the endpoint for average performers (average performers would stop at the 
midpoint). The motion carried 5 - O. Supervisors Monroe and Redenius moved and 
seconded removal of the appeal in 9b (line 23). The motion carried 4 - 1 (Vice Chairperson 
Grant opposed). Supervisor Monroe and Vice Chairperson Grant moved and seconded 
approval of Hagstrom's amendment as distributed. The motion carried 5 - O. Vice 
Chairperson Grant and Supervisor Redenius moved and seconded approval of Ordinance 
No. 738-09/12 with amendments. The motion carried 5 - O. 

Chairperson Brandl had no reports. 

The next regular meeting of the human resources committee was confirmed for September 19, 
2012 at 3:00 p.m. 

Adjournment. On motion and second by Supervisors Monroe and Brellenthin, Chairperson 
Brandl adjourned the meeting at approximately 5: 13 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted by Tammy Werblow, assistant to the county administrator. 
These minutes are subject to approval by the committee. 



LAUDERDALE LAKES LAKE 

MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 


MINUTES of 8-04-12 


Meeting called to order by Chairman Mason, at 07:30 A.M. 

A. Attendance: Present: Chairman Mason, Don Sukala, Peter Van Kampen, Wally 
Yandel, Rick Callaway, Nestor Dyhdalo and Jack Sorenson. 

B. Agenda: The agenda was approved on a Callaway / Dyhdalo motion and 
passed unanimously. 

C. ADDrove Minutes: Minutes from the 7/7/2012 meeting were approved as 
submitted on a Dyhdalo / VanKampen motion and passed unanimously. Minutes from 
the 7/23/12 meeting were approved with one change: correct the spelling ofPater Van 
Kampen's name in item "C". Minutes were approves on a Callaway / Sukala motion and 
passed unanimously. 

D. Update on Sterlingworth Bay Engineering: Jack provided an update on the 
project. Soil borings were done in August and reveal questionable soils at various levels 
in the strata. Remediation ofthe boring holes was performed by golf course staff and at 
this time there is virtually no residual evidence of the work. The soils report has been 
provided to Sterlingworth as well as our engineering firm. Jack expects to have a 
remediation plan from our engineers by October. 

E. Consider Revisions to Lake Ordinance: Scott presented a modification to the 
current lake ordinance to change the weekday speed limit to be in effect until 9 AM. 
Currently the night time speed limit begins at sunset and ends at sunrise. Several electors 
approached various members of the board recently and asked the Board to consider this 
concept to promote quiet time in the morning. Currently the speed limit is in effect until 
9 AM on weekends and holidays only. On a Yandel / Van Kampen motion the board 
voted unanimously to present this to the electors at the annual meeting to determine their 
opinion on the subject. 

F. Develop & Consider 2013 Budget: The provisional budget developed in July 
was amended. The following are the more significant changes; $25,000 was added for 
the leak in the lake to cover planning & permitting expenses. $5,000 was added as a 
general district reserve. The modifications to the proposed budget resulted in a total 
amount of$294,200. The proposed budget will be published, as required, in advance of 



the annual meeting and presented to the electors for approval. The budget passed 
unanimously on a Yandell Sorensen motion. 

D. Consider Position on Terry Pier Application: The Board discussed the pier 
application proposed in western Middle Lake in environmentally sensitive area #3. The 
Board considered the following: 

• 	 When the Wrights subdivided their property it was clear that no new 
moorings would be allowed as a condition of the CSM. 

• 	 Documents from Bob Wakeman (WI DNR) and Pam Schense (WI DNR) 
clearly articulate that the department has taken a position against any new 
moorings in this sensitive area. 

• 	 The Town of LaGrange ordinance prohibits any new moorings in the 
sensitive areas on Lauderdale. 

Comments from the audience including Herb Sharpless and Jerry Petersen were heard 
and echoed the Boards position. On a VanKampen I Sorensen motion the Board voted 
unanimously to oppose this pier permit application. 

D. 	 Project Reports: 
Town: Don Sukala reported about the upcoming Fireman's steak fry. 
Water Patrol: Nestor reported that the department had made 3 DUI arrests this 

season and commented that this is not indicative of any trending. The boats are working 
well, although hours are up because of the very few bad weather days. 

Golf Course: Scott reported that the golf course is on track from a budget 
standpoint. We had a pump failure on our irrigation system which created a situation 
where manual watering had to be performed for about 10 days. A new pump was 
installed and functioning. Generally rounds are better than average, although the very hot 
weather in July slowed play some. 

County: Nothing to report. 
Septic: We are paying the bills as they arrive. The new pumper has been a 

pleasure to work with and the transition seems to be quite seamless. 
Dam: Jack reported that with the low lake level he, Peter and Donovan 

were able to go into the dam entrance and inspect. They reported that the concrete looks 
good and found no areas of concern. Jack may consider recommending to saw cut a 
section of concrete to promote more efficient flow underneath the dam floor. While 
inspecting the dam they found several fish which were trapped because of the lack of 
water flow. The fish committee was called and rescued many of the trapped fish. 

Insurance: Nothing to report. 

D. 	 Other Business: None 

E. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 08:55 A.M. on a Sorenson I Van 
Kampen motion which passed unanimously. 

Respectfully submitted by, 	 Scott Mason, Chairman 



County Board Executive Committee 

July 16,2012 


10:00 AM 

County Board Room 114 


Walworth County Government Center 
100 Walworth St., Elkhorn, Wisconsin 

Revised Draft Minutes 

Chainnan Weber called the meeting to order. 

A quorum of members was in attendance, including Chainnan Weber, Vice Chainnan Kilkenny and 
Supervisors Brandl, Russell and Schiefelbein. 

Others in attendance included Kurt Picknell, Undersheriff; John Delaney, Jail Administrator; John Orr, 
Infonnation Technology Director; County Board Supervisor Tim Brellenthin; Christine Wen, UW
Extension Department Head/Horticulture Educator; Josh Clements, CNRED AgentlUW-Extension 
Office; Sheriff Dave Graves; Jamie Green, Robert Duffey, Dave Gerber and Steve Sax, Sheriff's 
Office; Rich Colbert, IT Applications Supervisor; John Orr, Infonnation Systems Director; Dean 
Logtennan, Walworth County Metropolitan Sewerage District Commission President; Brian Drier, 
EDCI Consultant; Bill Raab, EDCI Practice/Business Manager; Dave Gerber, Sheriffs Office; Nicole 
Andersen, Deputy County Administrator - Finance; Judy O'Donnell, Lafayette Town Supervisor; 
Barbara Fischer, Lafayette Town Clerk/Treasurer; and, Dave Bret!, County Administrator. 

With no withdrawals or changes, the agenda was approved 5 - 0 on motion and second by Supervisors 
Brandl and Kilkenny. 

The June 18, 2012 executive committee minutes were approved 5 - 0 on motion and second by 
Russell and Brandl. 

Public comment period. Dean Logtennan wanted to know if there was anything that could be done to 
expedite an appointment on the WalCoMet commission that has been held open by the county. 
Chainnan Weber thanked Logtennan and said he was aware the county had been working on an 
ordinance pertaining to WalCoMet appointments. Administrator Bret! said the current commissioner 
in the position has continued to legitimately serve while the county contemplates ordinance 
amendments. The county has been reviewing all appointments with the goal of achieving consistency 
in its appointment process. 

Ongoing/unfinished business 
Presentation regarding ProPhoenix Records Management System (RMS) software. Mr. Bret! said the 
RMS software package had many advantages over the old AS400 records system, which is expensive 
to maintain. Other police departments that purchase the software can access the records database. The 
City of Elkhom and Linn Township are currently using the software and have access. Some issues 
that have been addressed include how to manage this model with current staff or whether additional 
staff or a consultant would be needed. Staff has explored what the county would charge local police 
departments for access. Bill Raab, EDCI PracticelBusiness Manager and Brian Drier, ProPhoenix 
consultant, analyzed the county's infrastructure and method ofdelivery to local police departments. 
EDCI has consultants throughout Wisconsin and has done work for counties including Washington 
and Rock. They interviewed all stakeholders and identified multiple solutions for expanded use of the 
system. The committee's enclosure packet included a list of solution delivery options. IT staff has 
experience utilizing Cisco, a VPN (virtual private network), which is a lower cost option than others. 
Microwave data transmission is a higher cost option, and IT staff does not have as much experience 



Walworth County Executive Committee Revised draft minutes 
Monday, July 16,2012 at 10:00 AM 

Page 2 of9 

with it. Outsourced VPN is a medium cost option, but there are many concerns about security as well 
as devices used in the environment so it would not be as easy to integrate and operate smoothly. 
EDCI's fmal recommendation was to use the Cisco VPN delivery solution. Cisco meets all 
requirements for delivery of expanded usage of the ProPhoenix system. Drier said specific potential 
increased workload was not known at this time. ProPhoenix is scalable to accommodate increased 
volume, which would impact application staffing. Racine and Ozaukee counties have taken over 
support of their municipalities concerning records. Ozaukee footed the bill for the connection, and the 
scenario is similar in Racine County. Orr said Walworth County's environment is not the same. Cost 
sharing will need to be addressed in the future depending upon how many municipalities want to 
connect and utilize the ProPhoenix RMS. The Sheriff currently dispatches full-time for Linn 
Township and part-time for the city of Elkhorn. Supervisor Russell was in favor of setting up a 
payment structure to plan for future expansion to additional municipalities. Drier recommended the 
county's municipalities bear the cost of initial connection as well as share maintenance costs for 
continued connection. The county will maintain control over the larger network. Chairman Weber 
asked if the county will we be able to share records with municipalities outside of the county and 
Wisconsin. Drier said the capability is there. Users have to agree to share their information with 
others that utilize the ProPhoenix RMS. Lt. Gerber said ProPhoenix can allow access to anybody on 
the same system to query the database for information about other counties and municipalities that 
have entered shared data in that system. Linn Township has access to its records, which Sheriff's staff 
maintains. Vice Chair Kilkenny said he wasn't clear what database information is likely to be shared 
locally that is not part of a larger state or federal criminal database. Captain Gerber clarified that 
information in a database is accessible to others in the instance of an arrest. The ProPhoenix system is 
not tied to other databases, such as those used by the FBI. An example is WiGiS, an interactive web
based data analysis system the state is implementing. Gerber said contacts are not automatically 
entered into database. An arrest record wouldn't be known unless a specific criminal history was run 
by Sheriffs staff. A query would need to be conducted through the state or FBI to learn about a 
criminal record. Mr. Bretl wanted to make sure the committee understood the value of the ProPhoenix 
system in the context that staff is requesting an expanded application. The capital investment in 
ProPhoenix hardware and software has already been made. Bretl summarized his understanding that 
the committee was seeking to quantify the value of the information maintained in the ProPhoenix 
database, and how much the county wanted to invest in conductivity of the system to expand 
accessibility to local police departments. Vice Chairman Kilkenny stated that in an environment of 
budget freezes, he thought it was important to quantify if this was more valuable than other 
expenditures. Supervisor Schiefelbein stated his support of expanding the system, and Russell said 
she was supportive if the RMS would keep our officers and local police officers safer by providing 
greater access to information about arrests and criminal records. She said this effort might also 
enhance the county's intergovernmental cooperation efforts. The Sheriff supports local departments 
bearing the cost of connecting to the system. John Orr didn't anticipate an explosion ofusers coming 
on to the system but suggested providing a municipality a document asking if they want to invest in 
the appliance to facilitate their network connection and access to the RMS if they had already invested 
in ProPhoenix. Orr said municipalities should cost share as the ProPhoenix RMS environment is built 
out and usage continues to grow. Picknell said staff had informed the Elkhorn and Linn police chiefs 
about the likelihood of the county's cost sharing/recovery study. The municipalities were fine with that 
arrangement because of the economy of such a proposal versus building out their own database. Mr. 
Bred said in the interest of complete disclosure, he wanted supervisors to be aware that his 2013 
budget proposal would likely include money for IT consulting or a position, which, in part, is going to 
support the ProPhoenix RMS. At present, RMS support is not a full-time job with just two or three 
departments using it. Bred summarized the RMS proposal: 



Walworth County Executive Committee - Revised draft minutes 
Monday, July 16,2012 at 10:00 AM 

Page 3 of9 

1. 	 Did the committee feel the data and interconnectivity (with local police departments via 
ProPhoenix RMS) has value and if so, did the committee recommend other police departments 
be allowed to connect? 

2. 	 Did the committee recommend a uniform approach among the municipalities regarding service 
level and payment? 

3. 	 Did the committee recommend the county assess some type of charge for ongoing maintenance 
service and connectivity to the county's ProPhoenix database? 

4. 	 Did the committee recommend the municipalities be responsible for their connectivity costs, 
i.e., equipment, Internet connection and anything else required to connect to the ProPhoenix 
RMS system; and, should the municipalities pay for the costs of system maintenance? (The 
county would not be responsible to dispatch IT staff to the municipality for maintenance on 
their system.) 

5. 	 Did the committee recommend a uniform cost based on municipality size or anticipated use of 
theRMS? 

Orr said the ProPhoenix system is a better RMS than the AS400, a "legacy" system that is no longer 
efficient, expensive to maintain and doesn't allow information sharing with municipalities. IT 
programmers that formerly maintained the AS400 have been transitioned to analyst positions and 
taken on additional duties. There may be both fixed and variable costs associated with connectivity 
and ongoing maintenance. Video usage ofan RMS quickly accelerates storage demand, for example. 
Perhaps an "a la carte" menu of options could be offered to help municipalities determine which 
approach is most cost effective for them. Supervisor Russell moved support of proceeding and 
authorizing staff to determine a fee schedule agreeable to IT and Sheriff's staff; Supervisor 
Schiefelbein seconded the motion. Mr. Bretl asked whether the committee had any objection to 
establishing the parameters discussed by the committee as an ordinance. Russell revised her motion 
to include drafting an ordinance pertaining to the RMS operation and agreements with the 
municipalities relative to records sharing and fee schedule. The ordinance will state that 
municipalities subscribing and connecting to the ProPhoenix RMS will annually be provided an 
update by the county so they can anticipate costs for budget planning purposes. Schiefelbein 
supported the amended motion, which carried 5 - O. 

Ordinance relating to county board citizen appointments to library boards. Mr. Bretl indicated the 
Delavan library brought to his attention the county was not appointing the number of county 
representatives it is entitled to make. He requested input from libraries regarding changes the 
committee is considering to the county ordinance pertaining to library board appointments. Bretl 
wants to give local libraries ample time to ask any questions and provide feedback. He recommended 
the committee hold offuntil at least September moving the ordinance forward to the board. Lake 
Geneva Mayor Connors sent input asking ifLake Geneva's library board is in compliance. They and 
other libraries in the county are already appointing a town representative to their boards. Lake Geneva 
calls out their appointments by the town represented. Bretl indicated a shared process, considering 
municipal recommendations, might be used in making appointments. There is nothing in the statutes 
precluding appointing any county resident to represent a town on a library board. Supervisor Russell 
thought the county should insist on making the number of appointments Wisconsin Statutes entitle 
counties to make. She stated she was not opposed to recommendations from the local library boards. 
Consistency in the county's appointment process is important, she said. Vice Chair Kilkenny 
wondered whether a library board could end up with a quorum issue if the county authorized a certain 
number of seats it couldn't fill due to lack of available or qualified applicants. The timing regarding 



Walworth County Executive Committee - Revised draft minutes 
Monday, July 16,2012 at lO:OO AM 

Page 4 of9 

adopting the ordinance amendment will depend upon the feedback received from the libraries, said 
Bretl. Supervisor Russell supported the county reviewing library board appointments annually since 
the county's appropriation determines the number of appointments it is entitled to make. Bretl said the 
ordinance would indicate the most current state report and data would be utilized. The committee 
consensus was to review the revised ordinance in September if libraries had provided feedback. 

Ordinance relating to county board appointments ofcitizens to the Walworth County Metropolitan 
(WaICoMet) Sewerage District Commission. The draft ordinance incorporated changes discussed at 
the June executive committee meeting, which included a statutory requirement and preferences 
discussed by the committee concerning the make-up of the WalCoMet commission. The ordinance 
calls for an annual report by WalCoMet to the executive committee. Supervisor Kilkenny asked Dean 
Logterman if all members on the commission were currently from municipalities served by 
WalCoMet. Logterman said all five commissioners reside within the WalCoMet Sewerage District 
service area. WalCoMet formerly had a commissioner that moved out of the district and subsequently 
resigned from the commission. Bred said the ordinance section regarding appointment of a "local 
elected official" could mean anything from a senator who resides in the WalCoMet service area to a 
commissioner that serves on another local sewerage commission. The WalCoMet board does not 
currently have a commissioner that also serves on another sanitary district in the county. Logterman 
said that might constitute a conflict. Bretl said he had researched that possibility and did not fmd 
anything that would legally constitute a conflict. Engaging WalCoMet rate payers more actively in 
governance of the commission is the objective of the county ordinance. Chairman Weber asked if the 
ordinance language could be softened in section 2-225 (b) to indicate the county "will" instead of 
"shall" use its best efforts regarding commission appointments. Kilkenny was interested in the 
ordinance being flexible regarding appointment of a local elected official in the instance an applicant 
appeared unqualified to serve. He suggested stating something like "preference for an elected 
official." Kilkenny thought ordinance item 'c', pertaining to an annual invitation to WalCoMet to a 
meeting to provide the executive committee with an update regarding its activities, could have the 
most impact because there are occasionally sewer issues in the municipalities served by WalCoMet 
that generate debate and discussion. Supervisor Russell said Bred had drafted the ordinance based on 
the committee's discussion and preferences. She said the goal is to appoint someone who will be 
responsive to constituents. Kilkenny agreed to "soften" the language but said it should include 
consideration of appointing individuals that represent constituents and rate payers, and not a particular 
service area in the WalCoMet district. Bretl clarified that the ordinance will state commissioners may 
continue to serve until the county makes a new appointment. The committee consensus was to revise 
the ordinance to state the county "will use its best efforts" concerning appointments. Kilkenny said he 
felt that serving on another sewerage district could constitute a significant conflict with WalCoMet 
service. He considers it important for the county to consider appointing elected officials as long as 
they are not directly tied to an entity served and directly billed by WalCoMet. Kilkenny moved to 
eliminate section (b) 2 from the ordinance and revise section (b) to state the county board will 
consider that the commission include the following representation: a local elected official 
(subsection 1)." Bred confirmed the revisions would be compliant with statutes, and the ordinance 
would also state that current WalCoMet commissioners are free to continuing serving until the county 
makes an appointment. 

The committee began discussing WalCoMet quite a while ago, when the county received complaints 
from entities served by WaiCoMet. The concern was regarding WalCoMet's 2011 action to provide a 
compensation benefit to certain WalCoMet management employees whose wage was impacted by 
enactment of Wisconsin Act 10, which required non-represented employees to contribute toward their 



Walworth County Executive Committee Revised draft minutes 
Monday, July 16,2012 at 10:00 AM 

Page 5 of9 

WRS pension. The net effect of the compensation benefit was a wage increase/offset in the amount of 
the required WRS contribution. The committee had discussed elected officials being more responsive 
than appointed officials had been to the intent of the state law, which was to provide a tool to local 
governments to reduce costs. Logterman said WalCoMet didn't receive state aid and the impact of the 
compensation ended up being a "small portion of the year." Supervisor Russell asked for clarification 
about WalCoMet employees being reimbursed /compensated for the reduction in their wages. 
Logterman said WalCoMet's action was intended to provide equity among its employees because 
union employees were not impacted by Act 10 and actually received a raise under their contract tenns. 
They will begin making WRS contributions at the end of their contract period in 2012. Logtennan 
said WalCoMet did not grant a raise to its supervisors but did grant one to its administrator. He said 
WalCoMet's "key" employees were impacted first by Act 10. Of the 25 employees impacted, six 
supervisory employees were compensated to offset the reduction to their take-home pay. He said 
WalCoMet's rate increase to utility providers followed a rate study and didn't result from the wage 
compensation. Russell said Logtennan had indicated WalCoMet had an equity issue through the end 
of the year, and she asked ifhe was implying that at the end ofthat year WalCoMet then reduced 
everyone's wages. Russell stated that county employees and municipal employees statewide were 
required to contribute to their pension and were not given an option to have a compensation /offset to 
their pay. The county heard from constituents unhappy about WalCoMet's decision to compensate 
certain employees. Russell said WalCoMet's action was a way to ignore what the state intended 
should apply to all public employees (law enforcement excepted) to help employers balance their 
budgets. WalCoMet's rates to its entities (utility providers) might have been lowered, instead of 
raised, had a wage compensation not be provided. Logtennan said the commission had difficulty in 
regard to the equity issue. Russell said the equity issue was that many employees, statewide, have had 
to contribute, and they see others that have not had to contribute because they work in an organization 
where there are no elected officials. She said elected officials must be responsive to their constituents. 
The inequity resulting from WalCoMet's action has caused concern. 

The executive committee has discussed tenn limits for WalCoMet commissioners, which Supervisor 
Kilkenny thought should be two consecutive tenns. T enns limits will give the county board 
appropriate oversight ofWalCoMet activities. WalCoMet commissioners serve for five-year tenns. 
Mr. Bretl indicated language about tenn limits could be included in the revised draft ordinance. 
Kilkenny stated he preferred a two tenn limit that would not preclude a person serving again following 
a period of non-service. Weber thought this particular approach was also used by other entities and 
allows for rotation. Kilkenny moved to recommend the ordinance and modified his motion: 
remove subsection (b) 2; soften the language in (b) to indicate county board consideration of 
appointing a local elected official to the commission; include a statement that current WalCoMet 
commissioners may continue serving until the county makes an appointment pursuant to 
ordinance requirements; and, limit WalCoMet commission service to two consecutive terms. 
The motion was seconded by Schiefelbein and carried 5 - O. Mr. Bretl said if the committee was 
comfortable with the timing, the ordinance could be ready for the consideration and adoption at the 
September 6 county board meeting. To get the appointment process underway, he planned to proceed 
with advertising the position. 

The agenda did not include any appointments or consent items. 

New business 
SherifFs update regarding implementation ofelectronic monitoring program. This cost-saving 
measure was implemented in the 2012 budget, and ten FTEs were eliminated from the sheriffs 2012 



Walworth County Executive Committee - Revised draft minutes 
Monday, July 16, 2012 at 10:00 AM 

Page 6 of9 

budget. John Delaney report that cost savings have been achieved through expanded electronic 
monitoring. Seventeen inmates are currently on GPS monitoring. That number will be increased to 50 
inmates per day. Inmates are monitored on site in their homes, at business locations, work, etc. The 
Huber facility has been redesigned, and Public Works is in the process of remodeling the Huber 
facility to house jail inmates. An additional 147 beds will be available for future use to make a total of 
207 beds that can be used for Huber or jail inmates. $159,000 in savings has been realized from the 
elimination of correctional officer positions. An additional $319,000 in savings will be realized by the 
end of July 2012 through attrition. To delay a potential $11.5 million jail expansion, Huber space was 
reclaimed, and the j ail space expanded and redesigned. GPS technology is a much better way to 
monitor inmates effectively, from room-to-room, in their home and elsewhere. Staff meets twice 
monthly with Department of Corrections staff to address and review case management. Kilkenny 
asked if an inmate had to be employed to qualifY for the GPS/electronic bracelet program. Staff said it 
is presently a requirement. The weekly participation fee is $119. In the future, those that can't pay 
will be able to participate. Program cost and inmate debt will be accrued, and the inmate will be 
allowed to re-pay the debt. Outside agencies and resources will be utilized more in the future in the 
electronic monitoring program to assist inmates to complete community service. Kilkenny suggested 
the Sheriffs Office consider doing a press release indicating inmates can work in communities to 
complete community service projects. Since May I, there have been 90 participants in community 
service-based programs. There have been just three Huber inmates that lost privileges for alcohol
related offenses. Other offenders have completed rehabilitation. Electronic monitoring works very 
well to capture offenses that occur. Disciplining inmates is progressive, said Graves, with a goal of 
bringing inmates that violate into compliance and helping them meet family and medical needs as well 
as seeing that the inmates' psychological needs are met. Major violations are treated in a manner to 
remove the offender and any privileges. Supervisor Schiefelbein asked if the GPS monitoring 
program was a 2417 operation. Superintendent Sax indicated it currently operates Monday - Friday, 6 
AM - 6 PM; however, Sgt. DuffY receives text alerts of violations during the weekend from the web
based monitoring program, and deputies are dispatched to pick up violators. DuffY also receives alerts 
about any tampering with e-bracelets. Ifhe is off shift, Sax receives the alerts. The program has 
generated revenue, reduced jail operation costs and maintained safety. Nicki Andersen said an inmate 
staying at home versus in the jail reduces the county's general liability; therefore, a secondary savings 
will be realized with the county's general liability carrier of a 10% reduction in premium because of 
the reduction in the number ofbeds at the jail. Andersen indicated WMMIC was currently putting 
together draft numbers for county staff to review. There was no action regarding this item. 

Correspondence from Daniel D. Cooper, Town ofLafayette Chair and Judy 0 'Donnell regarding 
residents' concerns about the shooting range on Hodges Road. Mr. Bretl said one of the letters in the 
agenda packet referenced land use relative to the range. He advised the executive committee 
discussion should focus on the county's range operation and hours of operation. The letters had also 
been referred to the County Zoning Agency. Lt. Jamie Green is in charge of the range and will be 
investigating at which range the ordnance violations are occurring. There is a privately operated range 
just on the other side of the hill from county's range as well as a game preserve. Green explained 
there is a project proposal to raise a couple of berms at the county range. Range users have been 
informed to confine their shooting to the west side. An area resident said some ordnance rounds were 
discovered on his private property. The area in question is the berm on the north and west side of the 
range; bullets are ricocheting and leaving the range. Green said he had not yet an opportunity yet to 
interview the resident. Green said the NRA minimum berm height is 20 feet; Walworth County's 
range berms are 50 feet. Jamie Green said he reviewed the history of range use. He evaluated both 
law enforcement and non-profit group usage, for example, 4-H, hunter education, NRA and the 



Walworth County Executive Committee Revised draft minutes 
Monday, July 16, 2012 at 10:00 AM 

Page 7 of9 

Elkhorn Pistol Club. 2008 usage by law enforcement was 19 Saturdays or Sundays; in 2009 it was 21; 
in 2010, it was 15 weekends; in 2011, it was used 15 weekends; and, in 2012 there have been 15 dates 
reserved. Nine of the weekends were reserved by Gateway Technical College, but none has been used 
so there have been only six weekends in 2012 that the range was used on the weekend. Non-profit 
groups use the range nearly twice as often as law enforcement but use is primarily at the indoor facility 
at the range. Green said on the weekend of June 2, there was a sponsored law enforcement training 
session going on. There was nobody from the Sheriffs Office in attendance because all have had the 
course, but all participants in the rifle course were law enforcement personnel from different areas in 
Illinois and Wisconsin. The shooting noise began at 8 AM, not 6 AM. Sheriff Graves spoke with the 
Lafayette Town chairman and indicated the Sheriffs office will work cooperatively with the neighbors 
regarding range use, and range usage times will be reviewed. Green let residents near the range know 
they could inform him when they have a family event scheduled and he would reserve the range to 
restrict it to indoor use. Graves stated, "We can certainly look at the times of usage and different 
things like that, however, we need to shoot at night. Most of our shootings have occurred at night, in 
night settings so we have to train in a realistic way that we run into the challenges." Kilkenny 
suggested limiting hours and consolidating shooting times. It might not be too restrictive to move 
some use indoors to give the residents whatever relief they can give. Sheriff Graves said staff is 
researching modifying the shooting targets and berms without spending a lot ofmoney. The range 
was built in 1974 and needs updates. Kilkenny thought there might be more demand for use since the 
Conceal Carry Law was passed. Graves emphasized they are going to work with the area residents to 
modify times of usage. Supervisor Schiefelbein said automatic weapons ordnance would not ricochet 
any more than semi-automatic weapons. Supervisor Russell said she could really empathize with the 
neighbors, especially ifuse of the facility has accelerated over the years. She said, "We need to do 
everything possible to make sure that nothing is going outside of the facility." "The other thing 
is ... there ought to be one day and 1 would suggest Sunday, when there is no shooting, period." She 
suggested not scheduling anything on Sundays for anybody. She additionally suggested if they had to 
shoot at night, doing it at the time of year when it gets dark earlier so they're not shooting past 9 
o'clock. Graves said, "1 would agree with those things. I think we can probably deal with the Sunday 
issue. I think that is a possibility, everything you suggested." Supervisor Kilkenny suggested if 
officers need night training, it might be restricted to a specific night each month that people can count 
on. Graves said, "We can certainly look at those things and try to minimize the concerns of the 
neighbors." Graves indicated he would report back to the Lafayette Town chair as well as the 
executive committee. Russell asked if it would be a terrible hardship if we said no automatic weapons 
out there. Supervisor Schiefelbein stated opposition to banning the use of automatic weapons at the 
range. There may be occasions when properly trained law enforcement personnel may have to use 
automatic weapons. Green said there is a legitimate use for automatic weapons fITe and restricting 
other users from training in that aspect of law enforcement would be difficult. Sheriff Graves said, 
"We'll see what we can do but we can't promise it; we can't control it, we can't promise it." 
Chairman Weber asked Lafayette town residents in attendance if they were comfortable with the 
direction the committee had taken. Barbara Fischer, Clerk/Treasurer said residents were primarily 
concerned about safety of children that play in the neighborhood. Town Supervisor Judy O'Donnell 
said Lafayette residents appreciated the past two quiet weekends. Sheriff Graves clarified that the 
Sheriffs Office no longer conducts rifle sight-ins for the general public. There was no committee 
action. 

Report regarding UW-Extension Cultivating Futures Program. UW-Extension Department 
Head/Horticulture Educator Christine Wen recently reported on this program to the CJCC, with 
positive feedback. In 2009, our Public Works department requested assistance with greening up 



Walworth County Executive Committee - Revised draft minutes 
Monday, July 16,2012 at 10:00 AM 

Page 8 of9 

county landscapes and beautifying the grounds, utilizing volunteers trained in the Extension Office's 
master gardener program. Using a research-based approach and models from other counties, Wen 
began working with Huber inmates on electronic monitoring and then transitioned to Huber women. 
She said gardening has been shown to effect positive mental and physical rehabilitative benefits. 
Female Huber inmates came weekly throughout the summer of2011. Wen focused on improving their 
employment skills and complied with rules of the electronic monitoring program. An evaluation was 
conducted at the end of the program. Wen said five of the eight women completed the program 
successfully and can now use the county as a reference with potential employers. Two of the five who 
successfully completed Cultivating Futures gained employment, and none have returned to Huber 
following completion of their mandatory time. One got a resort job and another is working at a 
nursing care facility. Although they are employed in work other than gardening, Cultivating Futures is 
thought to have had a positive effect on their rehabilitation and employability. Kilkenny expressed 
support for expanding the program. Ms. Wen spoke with the pastor from Mt. Zion about expanding 
and integrating the program with Mt. Zion's program, which works with drug dependent clients. 
Cultivating Futures has not been as extensive in 2012 as it had been; however, work has been done at 
the Lakeland Health Care Center, which is maintained by the master gardener program. Program 
expenses are included in county department budgets for landscaping. Wen works with John Miller at 
Public Works, containing costs to what is in each department's budget. Bred asked ifthe committee 
had any concerns about expanding this program, including budgeting for it. Schiefelbein expressed 
support of expanding. Wen said either she or a trained master gardener supervises the inmates directly 
while they are working in the gardens and county grounds, and her staff is in contact with the 
superintendents at the Huber facility. As more people in the community are doing community service, 
an expansion of supervision will be needed. Supervisor Russell expressed support of expanding the 
program and funding it, and stated that our county parks could use some help, too. There was no 
action concerning this report. 

Wood County Resolution no. J J seeking state support offrac sand mining via policy development and 
allocation ofstate resources to assist in this area ofeconomic development. Bred said fracing has 
become an industry in the western part of Wisconsin, but it is not done in Walworth County. 
Hydrofracing is a technique used by the petroleum industry to extract natural gas and/or crude oil from 
rock formations, a process which requires a certain quality of sand. Wisconsin has high-quality sand 
resources, and is seeing a substantial rise in mining permit requests for frac sand mining. The extracted 
sand is shipped out of state to be used at gas and oil fields for hydro cracking. Chairman Weber said 
some of his business customers purchase Wisconsin sand for their industry applications. Mr. Bretl 
indicated the Wood County resolution was advisory only. The state legislature is not currently in 
session. The resolution was placed on file on motion and second by Supervisors Kilkenny and 
Schiefelbein and a vote of 5 - O. 

Review specifications for draft RFPs for Worliforce Development services. At the last county board 
meeting, an agreement was approved between Kaiser and the county for one-stop job services. The 
county is seeking competitive proposals for other specific services that Kaiser performed, which have 
never been put out for bid. Josh Clements has been working with purchasing staff on the bid 
specifications. There are four activities/services Kaiser has performed for the county that will be bid 
out, including adult and dislocated worker case management, youth services, out of school youth 
leadership and high school completion, and business services coordination. Adult and 
dislocated/displaced worker management primarily assists those out of work to access programs 
available through the state Workforce Development Training program. Youth services for ages 14 
21 is similar, providing access to programs and continuing education. Business services coordination 



Walworth County Executive Committee - Revised draft minutes 
Monday, July 16,2012 at 10:00 AM 

Page 9 of9 

aggregates what employers need from the workforce and connects potential employers with people out 
of work. Kaiser, with many years' experience providing these services, had been asked for 
recommendations about what the county's RFP should include. Supervisor Russell, who as chair of 
the county board serves on the county and regional workforce development groups, said she thought 
the RFP was well written and moved approving the RFP specifications; Kilkenny seconded the 
motion, which carried 5 o. 

Chairman Weber had no reports or announcements. 

The next regular committee meeting was confirmed for September 17 at lOAM. September 6 was 
confirmed for a special meeting preceding the county board meeting. 

There were no claims or litigation matters on the agenda. 

Chairman Weber adjourned the meeting at approximately 1: 15 PM on motion and second by Brandl 
and RusselL 

Submitted by Suzanne Harrington, County Administrator's Office. Minutes are subject to executive 
committee approvaL 



IDRAFT] 
Walworth County Board of Supervisors 


Park Committee 

MEETING MINUTES 


Monday, June 18, 2012 1:00 p.m. 

County Board Room 114-Government Center 

100 W. Walworth Street, Elkhorn, Wisconsin 


Call to order. Chair Schiefelbein called the meeting to order at 1 :03 pm. 


Roll call was conducted with the following members present: Board Supervisors: Dan 

Kilkenny, Nancy Russell, Timothy Schiefelbein, Michael Hurlburt, and Mariette Nowak. 


Others present: 

County statT: Public Works Director ofOperations Larry Price, David Bred, County 

Administrator. David Schilling, Principal Planner for the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional 

Planning Commission. 


Public Present: None 


Agenda withdrawals/approval: Motion by KilkennylRusseli to approve agenda. Motion 

carried 5-0. 


Approval of Minutes: Motion by Kilkenny/Nowak to approve the minutes of April 23, 

2012. Motion carried 5-0. 


No Public Comment 


Ongoing/unfinished Business 


a) Discussion and possible action to approve the draft of Chapter 3 - Existing Park 
and Open Space Sites with associated appendices. Mr. Schilling reviewed with the 
committee the draft ofChapter 3 that the Committee saw in February and had asked for 
corrections to be made. Schilling reviewed the corrections. Motion by RusselllNowak 
to approve Chapter 3 - Existing Park and Open Space Sites with associated 
appendices. Motion carried 5-0. 

b) 	 Discussion and possible action to approve Chapter 2-Inventory Findings of the 
Walworth County Park and Open Space Plan. Schilling reviewed Chapter 2 with the 
committee. In order to fonnulate the plan data must be collected and collated relating to 
existing demographic and economic characteristics, existing land uses, and natural 
resources. This data provides an important basis for detennining the need for additional 
park and open space sites and facilities and for designing a plan to meet those needs. Key 
components are as foHows: 

Walworth County Park Committee 
June 18, 2012 
Page 1 of 3 

Page 1 of 27 



1) 	 Population of Walworth County in 2010 was 102,228, an increase of61 percent over 
1970. During the same period households increased by 21,155, or about 114 percent, 

as the number of persons per household had decreased. 

2) 	 An inventory ofland use in 2010 indicated that 77.5 square miles, or about 13 percent 
of the County, was developed with urban uses, while the remaining 499.0 square 
miles, or about 87 percent of the County, were devoted to rural uses. 

3) 	 There are 173 miles of perennial streams and about 12,600 acres of major lakes 
within the County. There are approximately 52.4 square miles, or about 9 percent of 
the County located within the 100 year recurrence interval flood hazard area of the 
perennial streams. 

4) 	 The County encompasses a number of significant natural resource base features 
including wetland areas which occupied about 53.6 square miles, or about 9 percent 
of the County. Woodlands, occupy about 51.9 square miles, or about 9 percent of the 

County. The County contains 86 sites identified as natural areas - areas which 
contain native plant and animal communities believed to be representative ofthe pre

European settlement landscape. It also contains 39 critical species habitat sites - sites 
which support rare, threatened, or endangered plants or animals. 

5) 	 The most important elements of the natural resource base and features closely related 
to that base, such as wetlands, woodlands, wildlife habitat, major lakes and streams 

and associated shorelands and floodlands, and outdoor recreation sites result in an 
essentially linear pattern in the landscape referred to by the Regional Planning 
Commission as environmental corridors. Primary environmental corridors include a 
wide variety of important natural resources and resource-related elements and are, by 
definition, at least 400 acres in size, two miles long, and 200 feet wide. In 2010, 

primary environmental corridors encompassed about 106.8 square miles, or about 18 
percent ofthe County. 

6) 	 Approximately 352.6 square miles, or 61 percent of the County, were in agricultural 
use in 2010. Agricultural lands consisting ofClass I, II, and III soils are best suited 

for long-term agricultural use and are located throughout the entire County. 

Motion by KiIkennylHurlburt to approve Chapter II - Inventory Findings ofthe Walworth 
County Park and Open Space plan. Motion carried 5-0. 

David Schilling was asked if eliminating the August meeting will cause problems with deadlines 
for the plan. Schilling said no, but reminded the committee that the plan was to present material 
at an ICC meeting. Mr. Schilling stated as long as we are working with SEWRPC on the plan 
we remain eligible for grants from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. 

Next meeting to be held Monday, October 15 at 1:00 p.m. 

Walworth County Park Committee 
June 18, 2012 
Page2of3 

Page 2 of 27 



Motion by KilkennylRussell to adjourn at 1 :34 pm. Motion carried 5-0. 

Minutes recorded by Vicki Price, Public Works Department 

Note: meeting minutes are not consideredfinal until approved by the committee at the next regularly 

scheduled meeting. 

Walworth County Park Committee 
June 18,2012 
Page 3 of3 

Page 3 of 27 


